NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(SEPTEMBER 9, 2025) (WEEK 37 OF 2025)

TOwA Live streaming at: Agenda and Minutes available at:

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa www.woodburycountyiowa.gov
Daniel A. Bittinger Il Kent T. Carper David L. Dietrich Mark E. Nelson Matthew A. Ung
389-4405 570-7681 870-9224 540-1259 490-7852

dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov ~ matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov

You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held September 9,
2025, at 4:30 p.m. in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, lowa, for the purpose
of taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly
come before the Board.

This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business.
Members of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board
of Supervisors.

Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom.

The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board.

Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement.

Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.

At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first

followed by statements in opposition to the action. The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on

behalf of multiple speakers.

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation
on concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place
after properly noticed.

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when

approved by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a

subsequent meeting.

agrON=

AGENDA

2:30 p.m. Joint Closed Session with the LEC Authority {lowa Codes Section 21.5 (1) (c)}
Dennis Butler Meeting Room

4:00 p.m. Closed Session {lowa Code Section 21.5(1) (j)} Dennis Butler Meeting Room

4:30 p.m. Call Meeting to Order — Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag — Moment of Silence

1. Approval of the agenda Action

Consent Agenda

Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one
motion. Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member.

2. Approval of the minutes of September 2, 2025, meeting

3. Approval of claims


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.
mailto:kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov

4. Board Administration — Karen James

a. Approval of resolution for abatement of taxes for Debre Selam St. Mary Eritrean
Orthodox Tewahido Church of Sioux City
b. Approval to lift the tax suspension for D.S.

5. County Treasurer — Tina Bertrand
Approval of property tax refund on parcel #894721303006 in the amount of $802.40

6. Human Resources — Melissa Thomas

a. Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions

b. Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process

c. Approval of retiree request to remain on the County Health Insurance

d. Presentation of Awards Certificate to Dawn Lafave

e. Approve the renewal of Employee & Family Resources (EFR) as our employee
assistance provider
Approval to provide free flu shots to Woodbury County employees
Approval to provide wellness screening and continued quarterly individual health
coaching to eligible Woodbury County employees

«Q ™

End of Consent Agenda

7. Board Administration — Ryan Ericson
Approve contract with the lowa Economic Development Authority for a Action
Community Development Block Grant

8. Building Services — Kenny Schmitz
Approval of CMBA Architectural Services Contract for the Woodbury County Action
Law Enforcement Center demo (407 — 7" St.)

9. Reports on Committee Meetings Information
10. Citizen Concerns Information
11. Board Concerns Information

ADJOURNMENT

Subject to Additions/Deletions



WED., SEP 10 7:30 a.m.
8:05 a.m.

12:00 p.m.

6:30 p.m.

THU,, SEP 11 12:00 p.m.
4:00 p.m.

WED., SEP 17 12:00 p.m.
THU., SEP 18 4:30 p.m.
FRI, SEP 19  12:00 p.m.
MON., SEP 22  5:00 p.m.
THU., SEP 25 10:00 a.m.

11:15 a.m.

WED., OCT1 7:30 a.m.
4:45 p.m.

MON., OCT 6 5:00 p.m.
WED., OCT 8 7:30 a.m.
8:05 a.m.

10:00 a.m.

12:00 p.m.

THU.,, OCT 9 12:00 p.m.

4:00 p.m.

CALENDAR OF EVENTS
SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive
Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, Dennis Butler Mtg Room
District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.
911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill
SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.
Conservation Board Meeting, Brown’s Lake — Bigelow Park
Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202
Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue
Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting,607 — 4t Street
Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom
Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr.

Western lowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund Board of
Directors, 6401 Gordon, Dr.

SIMPCO Executive/Finance Committee, 6401 Gordon Drive

Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.

Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom

SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive

Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, Dennis Butler Room
STARComm Board Meeting, The Security Institute, WIT Campus

District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.

SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.

Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park

Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable
accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the

Employer.

Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national
origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the lowa Civil
Rights Commission at 800-457-44 16 or lowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability fo
access the lowa Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800~262-0003.



SEPTEMBER 2, 2025, THIRTY-SIXTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, September 2, 2025, at 4:30 p.m. Board members present were Carper, Ung,
Dietrich, Nelson, and Bittinger Il. Staff members present were Heather Van Sickle-Satterwhite, Executive Secretary/Public
Bidder, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, Ryan Ericson, Budget and
Finance Director, and Shona Campbell, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board.

+

The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.

1.

5a.

Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the agenda for September 2, 2025. Carried 5-0. Copy filed.
Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the following items by consent:

To approve minutes of the August 26, 2025 meeting. Copy filed.

To approve minutes of the August 28, 2025 meeting. Copy filed.

To approve the claims totaling $288,322.13. Copy filed.

To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution for tax suspension for Suzanne Hall, 224 S Leonard
St., parcel #894730407006.

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
RESOLUTION #13,948
RESOLUTION APPROVING PETITION FOR SUSPENSION OF TAXES

WHEREAS, Suzanne Hall, as titleholder of a property located 224 S. Leonard, Sioux City, lowa, Woodbury County,
lowa, and legally described as follows:

Parcel #894730407006

HIGHLAND 1 & 2S49 FT N 74 LOT 59

WHEREAS, Suzanne Hall of the aforementioned property has petitioned the Board of Supervisors for a suspension
of taxes pursuant to the 2017 lowa Code section 427.9, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors recognizes from documents provided that the petitioner is unable to provide to
the public revenue; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby grants the request for
a suspension of taxes and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to so record the approval of this tax
suspension for this property.

SO RESOLVED this 2" day of September 2025

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Copy filed.

To approve the reclassification of Rebecca Schoep, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 08-04-2025,
$28.20/hour, 5%=S$1.22/hr. Per CWA Civilian Contract: Article XVI Section 4. Move from 2" Class to 1 the
reclassification of Steven Holst, Motor Grader Operator, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 09-01-2025,
$29.03/hour, 1%=50.31/hr. In-house Job Vacancy Posted on 8/13/25. Equipment Operator to Motor Grader; the
appointment of Stephany Medina-Lopez, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 09-15-2025, $26.04/hour.
Job Vacancy Posted on 5/7/25. Entry Level Salary $26.04/hr.; the appointment of Azpeita Ulysses, Civilian Jailer FT-
Temp, County Sheriff Dept., effective 09-15-2025, $26.04/hour. Job Vacancy Posted on 7/10/25. Entry Level Salary
$26.04/hr.; and the appointment of Jace Kempers, Civilian Jailer FT-Temp, County Sheriff Dept., effective 09-15-
2025, $26.04/hour. Job Vacancy Posted on 7/10/25. Entry Level Salary $26.04/hr. Copy filed.



September 2, 2025 Cont’d. Page 2

5b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Mental Health
Advocate Coordinator-PT, Mental Health. $30.00/hr., and for Maintenance Technician, Building Services. AFSCME
Courthouse: $23.61/hr. Copy filed.

5c. To approve the deauthorization of Coordinator of Disability Services (-1.0 FTE), Mental Health, and for Support
Coordinator of Disability Services (-1.0 FTE), Mental Health. Copy filed.

Carried 5-0.

6. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the agreement with Tri State Nursing. Carried 4-1. Carper
opposed. Copy filed.

7. Motion by Bittinger second by Carper to approve to purchase up to two tables for the Siouxland Chamber of
Commerce Annual meeting. Carried 5-0. Copy filed.

8. Reports on committee meetings were heard.

9. Doyle Turner, 2738 200 St, addressed the board regarding the lowa Utilities Commission court case. Email from
William Burrows requesting each of the board supervisors to support Mark Nelson as the mediation representative
for the LEC Authority in claims against the authority’s construction adversaries.

10. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to receive document. Carried 5-0. Copy filed.

The Board adjourned the regular meeting until September 9, 2025.

Meeting sign in sheet. Copy filed.



August 29, 2025

To:

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors
620 Douglas Street

Sioux City, lowa 51101

From:

DEBRE SELAM ST. MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHIDO CHURCH OF SIOUX CITY
1717 Pierce St

Sioux City, IA51105

Re: 1717 Pierce St tax abatement

Towhom it may concern,

On behalf of DEBRE SELAM ST. MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHIDO CHURCH OF
SIOUX CITY I would like formally to request a one-time abatement for the 2024 tax
assessmentyear. We are a non-profit church and have been approved for tax exemption
for this property beginning 1/1/2025 assessment year. exemption letter attached. We
purchased the building in September, 2024 and immediately applied for exemption. The
tax savings will help support the success of our organization.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 712-223-6023, or 712-639-4543

Sincerely,

Tsegay Ghebre



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

RESOLUTION #
RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES
WHEREAS, Debre Selam St. Mary Eritrean Orthodox Tewahido Church of Sioux City is
the titleholder of real estate Parcel #894721355017 located in the City of Sioux City,

Woodbury County, lowa and legally described as follows:

Parcel # 894721355017

HIGMANS 2" LOTS 1 & 2 BLK 16

WHEREAS, the above-stated property has taxes owing for the 2024 tax year and the
parcel is owned by Debre Selam St. Mary Eritrean Orthodox Tewahido Church of Sioux
City, and

WHEREAS, the organization, namely Debre Selam St. Mary Eritrean Orthodox Tewahido
Church of Sioux City is failing to immediately pay the taxes due; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of
these taxes and;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above parcel according to Code of
lowa, 427.3 for the taxes owed for the 2024 tax year and hereby directs the Woodbury
County Treasurer to abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records.

SO RESOLVED this 9t" day of September, 2025.

ATTEST: WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Michelle K. Skaff Daniel A Bittinger Il, Chairman
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder



. f . .
Scouy City Hosesson’'s Office
620 Douglas St, 5% Floor, Courthouse
Sioux City, Iowa 51101

Tyler Erickson, Assessor Phone (712) 279 - 6535
Nan Rasmussen-Owings, Chief Deputy Assessor

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER AS TO THE APPROVAL OF
REAIL ESTATE PARTIAL TAX EXEMPTION

DATE OF NOTICE February 14, 2024
ST MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHIDO CHURCH OF SIOUX CITY

You are hereby notified that the Sioux City Assessor’s office on February 14, 2025, approved the real
estate property tax exemption for the following described property:

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1717 Pierce.St

PARCEL NUMBER: 8947-21-355-017

You are further advised by the Sioux City Assessor’s office, the above-described property will be exempt.
for January 1, 2025, for taxes payable fiscal year 2026/2027.

Nan Rasmuééen—Owings
Chief Deputy Assessor

MAWORD\EXEMPT\EXAPPDEN 113012025




Include this STUB with Septembze& 42C0T25 payment.

Woodbury County Treasurer

Include this STUB with March 20
Woodbury County Treasurer

26 payment.
2024& Y
Parcel#: 894721355017

Tina M. Bertrand Parcel#; 894721355017 Tina M. Bertrand
822 Douglas St. Suite 102 Receipt# 033448 822 Douglas St. Suite 102 Receipt# 033448
Sioux City, 1A 51101 Dist: 0087 Sioux City, 1A 51101 Dist: 0087
(712) 279-6495 (712) 279-6495
TAX DUE: Full Year or September 2025 TAX DUE: March 2026
[ $6,158.00 | [_$3,079.00 | $3,079.00

Delq Oct 1, 2025

LR e |

ST MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHIDO

CHURCH OF
821 8TH ST
SIOUX CITY, 1A 51105

1 TR RURR T 1R

Woodbury County Tax Bill for September, 2025 and March, 2026.
Send the correct stubs along with your check for payment. If your taxes are paid by your Bank in Escrow, this is for your information only. Based on January 1,
2024 valuations. Taxes for July 1,2024 through June 30, 2025. Payable September 2025 and March 2026.

Keep this document in a safe location.

Delq April 1, 2026

ST MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHIDO
CHURCH OF

821 8TH ST

SIOUX CITY, IA 51105

PARCEL Deed: ST MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHIDO CHURCH OF SIOUX CITY Mail: ST MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEWAHID Class: C
Dist/Parcel SIOUX CITY LL SIOUX CITY COMM 894721355017 Type: 2024 CT Receipt# 033448
Location: 1717 PIERCE ST Legal: HIGMANS 2ND LOTS 1 & 2 BLK 16
Acres: 0.000 Tax ID:
VALUATIONS AND TAXES NOTICE(S) TO OWNER(S)
2024 (This Year) 2023 (Last Year)
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
Land: 62,900 40,577 62,900 40,167
Buildings: 187,600 121,021 187,600 119,798
Dweliings: o 0 0 0
Total Values: 250,500 161,598 250,500 159,965
Less Homestead Exemption: 0 ¢]
Less Military Exemption: 0 0
Net Taxable Values: 161,598 159,965
Value Times Levy Rate of: 38.1096400 37.4783500 OWNERS
EQUALS GROSS TAX OF: $6,158.44 $5,995.22 DEED: ST MARY ERITREAN ORTHODOX TEW...
Less Credits of: Homestead: $0.00 $0.00
Low Income/Elderly Credit: $0.00 $0.00
Ag land Credit: $0.00 $0.00
Family Farm Credit: $0.00 $0.00
Net Annual Taxes: $6,158.00 $5,996.00 5
Payments: $0.00 CONTRACT:
Tax Dollars for Emergency Management County: $316,411.00
Distribution of your current year taxes: Total property taxes levied by taxing authority:
Taxing Authority: % of Total 2024 (This Year) 2023 (Last Year) This Year Last Year Percent +/-
SIOUX CITY INC 44.94 2,766.80 2,646.29 60,563,070.00  58,054,905.00 4.32
SIOUX CITY COMM 32.49 2,000.91 1,980.40 39,944,372.00  40,158,235.00 (0.53)
COUNTY CITY 18.66 1,149.09 1,137.68 38,381,920.00  37,565,876.00 217
WEST IA TECH 2.69 165.83 159.17 11,782,689.00  10,953,692.00 7.57
CITY ASSESSOR 0.91 56.14 53.25 1,188,069.00 1,135,456.00 4.63
COUNTY AG EXTENSION 0.31 19.23 18.92 632,208.00 617,103.00 2.45
T.B. ERAD 0.00 0.00 0.29 0.00 10,376.00 (100.00)
TOTALS: 100.00 6,158.00 5,996.00 152,492,328.00  148,495,643.00
You may pay online at: www.lowatreasurers.org Your Tax Receipt Number is: 033448
Woodbury County Treasurer . . : .
Tina M. Bertrand Due in September 2025: $3,079.00 Due in March 2026: $3,079.00
822 Douglas St. Suite 102 ide ide
Sioux City, 1A 51101 Date Paid: Date Paid:
Check # Check #

(712) 279-6495

Retain this lower portion for your records. Enter the date paid and your check number for your information. Keep in a safe place.



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

BOARD ADMINISTRATION
MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Supervisors
FROM: Karen James, Administrative Assistant
DATE: September 4, 2025
RE: Lifting of Tax Suspensions

Please lift the tax suspension for D.S. as this person no longer wishes to have her taxes
suspended.

LIFTING TAXSUSPL.ON



Tina M. Bertrand
Woodbury County Treasurer
822 Douglas St Ste 102
Sioux City IA 51101
712-279-6495

September 3, 2025

RE: Refund Request for
Parcel 8947 21 303 006

Dear Board of Supervisors,

Bonnie/John Stetson are the owners of the property at 2002 Grandview Blvd in
Sioux City, Iowa. The parcel is 8947 21 303 006 and has $802.40 in advance
payments on the parcel. The owners qualify for the disabled veteran credit, which
means they will pay no property taxes in the future. They have requested the
balance of $802.40 be refunded to them.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Thank you,

SRR

Janet L. Trimpe

Woodbury County Treasurer Tax Deputy
822 Douglas St Ste 102

Sioux City, IA 51101



WOODBURY COUNTY
TR EAS U R E R Woodburyhgii:r:?; Treasurer

www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 822 Douglas St., Room 102
822 Douglas St. Room 102 Sioux City, lowa 51101
Sioux City, IA51101

Request for Property Tax Refund

We hereby request a refund of property tax paid for the following parcels:

PARCEL # 894721303006 Amount $ 802.40
‘ PARCEL # - . Amount
————PARCEL#- —- : ——Amount e
PARCEL # Amount
REASON FOR REFUND:
I:I Over Payment made on l:l Sold Property on

D Duplicate Payment made on

Other: Has disabled veterans exemption. Prepayments made from April 2025-August 2025 unapplied.

REFUND REQUESTED BY:

Name(s \/)Mhntc @ Q+€+S©H

(Refund to be |ssued to name above Please Print Clearly)

Mailing Address: o?@oﬁl\ ércn N c( D1ew < %\B ‘U @
City: SHOQ\L @l | State: 1= A ZipB [ O <
Phone Number: 712 -5 F-2 46 ¥ emai:_DS Fefsen@ms n-com
Printed Name: \p\on n, @e%&z N pate: D le~ 25

Signature: @WVMCQ/ k/%ﬁ%)

Office use Only:
Notes:

Clerk: v Date:

Refund issued on: : Check #:

Property Tax: (712)279-6495
Fax: (712) 279-6493



HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS

* PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:

DATE: _September 9, 2025 A- Appointment R-Reclassification
T - Transfer E- End of Probation
P - Promotion S - Separation
D - Demotion O — Other
TO: WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
EFFECTIVE SALARY
NAME DEPARTMENT DATE JOB TITLE REQUESTED % REMARKS
INCREASE
Baumann,
Collin Sherift’s Office 09-01-2025 Civilian Jailer Separation
Per AFSCME
Attorney-
Messerschmidt, | Attorney’s Office 09-15-2025 Assistant $122,057.00/year | 3%=$4,109.00/ Move from
Haley County Attorney yr Step 8 to Step
9. Anniversary
Date: 9/15/25
Per AFSCME
Courthouse-
Huynhle- Human Resources 09-15-2025 Senior Clerk $24.86/hour 5%=1.25/hr Move from
Trobaugh, Vy Step 3 to Step
4. Anniversary
Date: 9/16/25
Per AFSCME
Attorney-
DeMers, Attorney’s Office 09-15-2025 Assistant $93,783.00/year 5%=$4,104.00/ Move from
Andrew County Attorney T Step 2 to Step
3. Anniversary
Date: 9/18/25
Per CWA
Roads. End of
Equipment Probationary
Collins, Jadin Secondary Roads 09-15-2025 Operator $28.72/hour 3%=$0.86/hr Period
Increase.
Anniversary
Date: 9/19/25
Pay Increase
Wersal, Civilian $3,685.37/ 3%=$107.34/ According to
Jennifer Sherift’s Office 09-15-2025 Lieutenant bi-weekly bi-weekly Wage Matrix.
Anniversary
Date: 9/24/25
Per CWA
Harmon, Contract
Hayden Sheriff’s Office 09-15-2025 Civilian Jailer $31.12/hour 10%=$2.92/hr Article XVI
Section 3 (B):
Move to Senior
Wingert, Sheriff’s Office 01-18-2026 % Deputy Chief Retired
Michael

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:

Y Aidan <j-{97u‘.u2/ W Ktec¥gre )




HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

DATE: September 9, 2025

AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE HIRING PROCESS

_ DEPARTMENT | POSITION | ENTRYLEVEL | APPROVED | DISAPPROVED
CWA Civilian:
Sheriff’s Office Civilian Jailer $26.04/hour

(AUTHFORM.doc/FORMS)

“Chairman, Board of Supervisors




Woodbury County Sheriffs Office

LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER
P. O. BOX 3715 SIOUX CITY, IOWA 51102 .

Chad Sheehan, SHERIFF . PHONE: 712.279.6010
E-MAIL: csheehan@woodburycountylowa.gov
FAX: 712.279.6522

September 2nd, 2025

To the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors & Human Resources Department,

The Woodbury County Sheriff’s Office respectfully requests discussion and action on the authorization to begin
the hiring process for one (1) Correctional Officer positions, effective September 10, 2025, We request this
be placed on the agenda for Tuesday September 9th, 2025, at the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors
meeting. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Chad Sheehan, Sheriff

cc: file




Woodbury County Sheriffs Office

LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER ‘
P. 0. BOX 3715 SIOUX CITY, IOWA 51102

Chad Sheehan, SHERIFF PHONE: 712,279.6010
E-MAIL: csheehan@woodburycountylowa.gov
FAX: 712.279.6522

To: Melissa Thomas

Date: 08-19-2025

This is my official notice that | intend to retire on January 18", 2026. | am also notifying you that | wish to
remain on the County Insurance Plan as a single user. The first year would be free, and | intend to stay

on the Plan and pay the monthly fee.

Thankyou,

Chief Deputy Tony Wingert




T
OLifeShe

5625 NW Johnston Drive
Johnston, 1A 50131,

: 'DAWN M LAFAVE
4040 ADAMS ST

@
LlfQS’W

T284219 :




0208°'6 dogwojdaosg

siosialodng jo pieog ‘G MoaypIvow

siosialadng jo pieog ‘WoSpopN W.:QS\
siosiAladng jJo pieog ‘wajnporQq piavg
siosiaredng yo pieod ‘vodavp pwoy

uewlirey) ‘siosialadng jo pieog ..-Q@S.suuwm poi1wv Qg

(MOT1=8 I1LVvd FHL Wodd SHLNOW XIS NIHLIM GIWHIGIY Zd LSNiA 440 3INWIL)
d31N3ID ao0T1g IAYISEHIT] ZHL OL SNOTIVD ¥ 40 NOILYNOQ SNOHIANZD FAHL d0 4

IAVAVY™ NMY(J

OL AdZAaVUVAMY
440 FNWI]L dIVvd 40 sadNOH () ¥3no 4

QYVMY 40 ILVODIAIL¥ID

ANV N NN Y




WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date: 09/04/2025 Weekly Agenda Date: ~ 09/09/2025

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN: Melissa Thomas HR Director

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:

Approve the renewal of Employee & Family Resources (EFR) as our employee assistance provider.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve Ordinance [ Approve Resolution [ Approve Motion

Public Hearing [ Other: Informational [J Attachments

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The EFR annual renewal is being presented

BACKGROUND:

Woodbury County provides EAP services to it's employees and reservists. EFR offers 6 in person sessions per
incident and managerial referral services.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The cost of this service has gone up slightly from $25.50 to $26.25 per employee for a total of $12,836.25

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes O No O

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the motion

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to approve EFR as Woodbury County's EAP Provider

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.




D,
-FA EMPLOVEE € FAMILY RESOURCES

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT
FOR
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
EAP Core 6

THIS AGREEMENT for Employee Assistance Program (EAP) Services (hereafter “Agreement”)
is made by and between Woodbury County, lowa (hereafter “Company”) and Employee &
Family Resources, Inc. (hereafter “EFR”).

FOR CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and covenants contained in this Agreement,
Company and EFR agree as follows:

1. General. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a company sponsored benefit that helps
employees prevent or manage personal problems that can negatively impact their quality of
life and workplace productivity. Company seeks to: 1) promote the health and wellbeing of its
workforce; 2) retain valued employees; and 3) maintain a productive and efficient work
environment.

2. Covered Persons. Unless otherwise stated, services provided by EFR pursuant to this
Agreement are limited to Company employees and their family members (collectively
“Covered Persons”). For purposes of this Agreement, “family member” means a person who
is related to the employee by marriage: spouse, (including significant other cohabitant), blood,
or adoption and who either lives with the employee or is a minor subject to the employee’s
legal custody.

3. Term. This Agreement shall be effective on October 1, 2025 (hereafter "Effective Date”) and
shall remain in effect until September 30, 2026. Thereatfter, it shall be renewed for successive
one-year periods unless either party gives a written termination notice to the other party at
least thirty (30) days prior to the anniversary of the Effective Date.

4. Compensation and Payment. EFR shall be paid in advance, at the following applicable rates:
EAP services for Covered Persons: $26.25 per employee, per year.

A. Census confirmation. Company confirms the first-year census of 489 employees.
Company agrees to provide the most current census annually sixty (60) days prior to
the anniversary date and, upon request, agrees to provide EFR-approved
documentation (e.g. current payroll report) to substantiate Company census.

B. Rate guarantee. Rate is guaranteed for the duration of this initial Agreement term and
in one-year increments thereafter.

C. Rate changes. If there is a change in any of the applicable Annual Rates after the
initial Agreement term, EFR shall give written notice to the Company at least thirty (30)
days prior to the change.



Manner of Payment of Service Fee. EFR shall be paid the Service Fee, in advance, on an
annual basis as agreed upon by Company and EFR.

Services Provided. EFR agrees to provide the following services to Covered Persons at no
charge to the Covered Persons:

A. Program / Benefit Orientation / Training and Materials.

a. Employee and Manager Orientation. Employee and manager orientation
sessions to explain effective use of the benefit will be delivered in-person or via
live and recorded webinars, PowerPoint presentations, or teleconference
sessions.

b. Promotional Materials. Information, materials and templates describing and
promoting EFR services, including, but not necessarily limited to: posters,
wallet cards, and brochures.

c. Monthly Newsletters. Employee newsletter, “Life Happens” and a quarterly
management newsletter “Workplace Solutions” with topical articles and
information will be delivered electronically on a monthly/quarterly basis to the
designated Company person(s) for distribution.

B. 24-Hour, 365 Day Nationwide Telephone Service. Access for Covered Persons to
an EFR counselor via EFR’s toll-free telephone number twenty-four (24) hours a day,
seven (7) days a week.

C. In-Person or Virtual Assessment, Referral and Short-term Counseling. Up to six
(6) sessions of in-person or virtual assessment, referral and/or short-term counseling
sessions to be provided at no charge to the Covered Persons in a rolling calendar
year. When clinically appropriate, additional sessions may be authorized.

D. Telephonic Life Coaching and First Responder Coaching Sessions. A covered
person is eligible for up to six (6) coaching sessions per contract year for issues such
as improving time and/or stress management skills, work-life integration and personal
growth. Health related topics and smoking cessation services are specifically
excluded from life coaching.

E. Work/Life Services. For each separate issue, consultations include:
a. Telephonic or in-person legal consultation with an EFR network attorney
b. Telephonic financial consultation with an EFR network financial provider
c. Telephonic eldercare resource referral with an EFR network eldercare provider
d. Telephonic childcare resource referral with an EFR network childcare provider

e. Telephonic ID theft resolution with an EFR network ID theft resolution
counselor

F. Togetherall. An anonymous, online peer-to-peer mental health community that is
monitored and moderated 24/7 by licensed and registered mental health practitioners.
Range of self-help resources including self-paced courses; assessments, journaling
tool, articles, etc.

Page 2 of 6



G. EAP Website Access. All Covered Persons have access to EFR’s EAP website

resources (www.efr.org).

H. Management Consultation. On-going telephonic consultation with Company
managers, supervisors, and human resources staff regarding intervention with
troubled employees, crisis response, and the management referral process.

I. Crisis Response Services. Upon the request of Company managers, EFR will
provide on-site group debriefings in the event of critical incidents that impact the
workplace, including employee or family deaths, serious injuries, natural disasters,
workplace changes, or similar traumatic events.

J. Monthly Motivators/Quarterly Campaigns. EFR will provide, in electronic format,
Monthly Motivators and Quarterly campaigns.

K. Culture Audit. Assessment tool identifying company’s needs and providing strategy
to advance culture of wellness in the workplace.

7. Professional Qualifications of Staff. All assessment counselors, including affiliate
providers, shall hold a Master’s degree in a human service field, including but not limited to
social work, mental health counseling, psychology, or marriage and family counseling. Special
circumstances (e.g., geographical limitations) may at times warrant the use of staff that hold
a Bachelor’'s degree and not a Master’s degree; all such situations shall be carefully evaluated
and the decision to proceed made with the client’s best interest in mind. All providers shall be
degreed and hold appropriate licensure and certification in their field of health, nutrition,
coaching, mental health counseling, law orfinance.

8. Assessment, Referral, and Short-Term Counseling. The assessment, referral and/or short-
term counseling service referred to in Paragraph 6 is limited to:

a. Necessary consultation required to assess the probable cause of perceived difficulties

b. Referral to professional service(s) qualified to provide treatment or long-term
counseling for the probable cause identified

c. Short-term counseling in such cases where EFR staff is professionally qualified, and
referral for long-term counseling is not clinically indicated

d. Follow-up for Covered Persons who use these services

Company acknowledges that EFR identifies the probable cause of perceived difficulties and
provides referral and/or short-term counseling services. EFR does not provide actual care or
long-term treatment under this Agreement. If care or treatment is required, the individual
Covered Person will be responsible for obtaining and paying for such care and treatment.
Although EFR will refer Covered Persons to professional services deemed appropriate by
EFR, EFR in no way warrants the effectiveness of any such care or treatment and shall have
no liability whatsoever with respect to any such care ortreatment.

9. Additional Workplace Services. In addition to those specific services referred to in
Paragraph 6 above, the Company may agree to contract with EFR for additional services as
shall be made available by EFR. These services and the corresponding Service Fee for these
services will be requested and approved by Company in advance. This could include onsite
workplace trainings, mediation services, and leadership coaching.

Page 3 of 6


http://www.efr.org/

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Maximum Number of Sessions. The maximum number of in-person counseling sessions
that Covered Persons may receive for each separate cause of difficulties (hereafter “Maximum
Number”), and not for each separate consequence arising from the same cause, is shown in
Paragraph 6. The Maximum Number of sessions applies to each cause of difficulties and not
each family member. Thus, each Covered Person within the same family may not receive the
Maximum Number of sessions for each cause of difficulties. Instead, all Covered Persons
within the same family together may receive the Maximum Number of sessions for each
separate cause of difficulties. The number of sessions actually provided may be less than the
Maximum Number if EFR determines in its sole discretion that the Covered Persons’ needs
for a particular cause of difficulties have been satisfied by fewer or there is an immediate need
for referral to a different program or service.

Records and Reports. EFR will maintain, and will require its agents to maintain, appropriate
records regarding the services contemplated by this Agreement. Clinical records shall be
maintained according to acceptable standards, including case notes on each case, protection
from unauthorized access, and informed written consent required prior to release of records
except as otherwise permitted under applicable State or Federal law. EFR shall provide
Company annual statistical reports summarizing usage of EAP services. These reports are
subject to the confidentiality provisions of Paragraph 13 below and will not list the names of
persons using EAP services.

Independent Contractor Status. The parties to this Agreement intend that the relationship
created by this Agreement is that of an independent contractor. No agent or employee of EFR
shall be deemed to be an employee or agent of Company. The provisions of this Agreement
shall not be deemed to create any partnership, joint venture, or agency relationship between
the parties. Neither party has any power or authority to act on behalf of, represent, or bind the
other party, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement.

Confidentiality. The parties understand and agree that the counselor-client relationships
entered into as a result of this Agreement (including, without limitation, any evaluation, referral,
and case management) are to be strictly confidential in accordance with all applicable Federal
and State laws, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act of 1996, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. Company
shall not request from EFR any information that would violate a Covered Person’s
constitutional rights, right of privacy of any counselor-client relationship, nor shall EFR give
any confidential information to Company, its employees or agents or any third party without
the express written approval of the Covered Person involved.

Insurance and Mutual Indemnification. EFR agrees to maintain commercially reasonable
liability insurance coverage. EFR shall indemnify and hold Company harmless for any claims
that arise from any acts and omissions of EFR under the terms of this Agreement. Company
shall indemnify and hold EFR harmless for any claims not directly related to the provision of
professional services as herein described, and shall notify EFR immediately upon receipt of
any claim or demand which it receives allegedly related to any act or omission of EFR under
the terms of this Agreement. Under no circumstances shall settlement be made without prior
written approval of EFR.

Page 4 of 6



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Subcontractors. EFR shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assure itself that any
subcontractor engaged by EFR to perform any services pursuant to this Agreement shall
adhere to all of the terms of this Agreement, including, without limitation, Paragraphs 13,
14, and 15.

Default by EFR. If EFR fails to perform its obligations under the terms of this Agreement and
such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after Company gives EFR a written notice
stating the manner in which EFR is in non-compliance with this Agreement, Company may
terminate this Agreement effective immediately by giving written notice to EFR, which shall be
Company’s sole remedy in the event of non-performance by EFR. If EFR is unable to perform
its obligations under the terms of this Agreement due to acts of God, strike, war, or other
similar reasons beyond EFR’s control, then EFR’s time for performance shall automatically be
extended for the same period of time EFR was unable to perform due to the reason beyond
EFR’s control.

Non-Payment of Service Fee. If Company fails to timely pay the Service Fee to EFR, EFR
may terminate this Agreement effective immediately by giving written notice to Company or
may pursue any other remedy available at law or in equity or by statute. In the event EFR
pursues legal action to collect all or any portion of the Service Fee, EFR shall be entitled to
recover its collection costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees.

Governing Law. The construction, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of lowa.

Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement must be given in writing and shall
be deemed given and received, if sent by United States Mail, with postage prepaid and
addressed to the recipient party at the address set forth in this Agreement, three business
days after deposited in the United States Mail. Either party may change its address by giving
written notice in accordance with this paragraph.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire understanding between the parties
with respect to the provision of EAP services, and supersedes and replaces all prior
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements pertaining to this Agreement.

Modification. This Agreement may not be modified except by a written instrument signed by
the party against whom enforcement of the maodification is sought, and then only to the extent
set forth in such written instrument.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Headings. The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not
be used to limit or otherwise construe the provisions of this Agreement.

Page 5 of 6



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
620 Douglas Street, Suite 701
Sioux City, 1A 51101

(signature)

EMPLOYEE & FAMILY
RESOURCES, INC.

505 5th Avenue, Suite 600
Des Moines, IA 50309

Teresa Belden

(printed name)

(signature)

Teresa Belden

(title)

(printed name)

WPS Employer Services Manager

(date)

(title)

9/02/2025

(date)

Page 6 of 6



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date: 09/04/2025 Weekly Agenda Date: ~ 09/09/2025

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN: Melissa Thomas HR Director

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:
Approval to provide free flu shots to Woodbury County employees

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve Ordinance [ Approve Resolution [ Approve Motion

Public Hearing [ Other: Informational [J Attachments [J

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This is an annual request and Unity Point will be offering these at the wellness blood draws.

BACKGROUND:

Last year 93 employees participated at a cost of $2,976.00

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

This year the cost has increases from $32.00 to $35.00 per flu shot.

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes O No O

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the motion

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to approve providing flu shots for Woodbury County employees.

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date: 09/04/2025 Weekly Agenda Date: ~ 09/09/2025

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN: Melissa Thomas, HR Director

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:

Approval to provide wellness screenings and continued quarterly individual health coaching to eligible Woodbury County employees

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve Ordinance [ Approve Resolution [ Approve Motion

Public Hearing [ Other: Informational [J Attachments [J

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Wellness screenings will include 4 different types of tests: Wellness Blood Profile, PSA, TSH and AC1. Also
included are health coaching, other educational programs and quarterly testing.

BACKGROUND:

Woodbury County has provided these screenings and other health services for eligible employees and
spouses since 2014. The program has been successful with employees overall wellness and we continue to
make improvements to fit our employees needs and make it more convenient to participate.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Please see attached schedule. Last year approximately 260 employees and spouses participated in the wellness
program at a cost of approximately $43,000.00. This year the prices for each test have remained the same. Please
see attached.

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes No O

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the wellness screenings and quarterly health coaching

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to approve the wellness screenings and quarterly health coaching

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.



MERCYONE.

Health and Wellbeing Services
PrO‘%%OggPRY COUNTY WELLNESS PROGRAM

7.29.2025

Contact: Kris Hartje, M.A.
Account Manager

Kris.hartie@mercyhealth.com

Our Wellness Team is comprised of individuals with professional certifications, such as:
Registered Nurse, Certified Health Coach, Physical Therapy Assistant, Certified Group
Fitness Instructor and Certified Occupational Health Nurse.


mailto:Kris.hartje@mercyhealth.com

MERCY

Woodbury
County

Goal:

To continue our
Partnership with
Woodbury County
and their wellness
program.

Timeline:

To be determined

Program Design

Biometric Screening & Results Review + Flu Vaccine Clinic

Wellness Screening & Results Review:

e Wellness Blood Profile/ $55 per person + onsite administration fee

Includes height, weight, BMI, body fat and waist measurement. Over 25 blood
chemistry components are included in this profile. This includes total
cholesterol, HDL, LDL, triglycerides, glucose, a complete blood count (white
and red blood cell counts) as well as kidney and liver function components. The
results can be used to help identify health problems such as diabetes, heart
disease, as well as kidney and liver disease.

This blood profile requires a 9-12 hour fast prior to your appointment. Water is
recommended as it helpful to be well-hydrated for this venous blood draw. You
are advised to avoid alcohol 24 hours prior to your appointment.

e Wellness Coaching, Group Coaching, Group Fitness Class, Body Fat Testing =
$65 per hour

e Additional Screening Opportunities Available during Wellness Screening

TSH = $39

PSA Screening (men over age 50) = $39
Hemoglobin A1C (HbA1C) = $30

e Schedule Biometric Screening Event to be held at various locations based on
schedule and availability.

Flu Vaccine Clinic:

e Flu Vaccine/ $35 per person + onsite hourly fee of $65 per resource per hour
e Vouchers may be available/yet to be determined for 2026 flu season.

e Date/Time to be scheduled at Woodbury County Health Fair.

Program Components:

e To Be determined based on aggregate screening data availability

These recommendations.have been. identified.as.an effective way for employers.to help.employees.and.their dependents,




MERCY

improve their health and wellbeing as well as reduce healthcare expenditure.

MercyOne Business Solutions appreciates the opportunity to propose a collaborative partnership to improve the wellbeing
of your employees and their family members. We hope the information provided within this proposal will help in the
evaluation of the services needed to enhance the wellbeing offerings at your organization.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date: 09-03-2025 Weekly Agenda Date: ~ 09-09-2025

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN: Ryan Ericson - Finance Director

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:

Approve contract with the lowa Economic Development Authority for a Community Development Block Grant

ACTION REQUIRED:
Approve Ordinance [ Approve Resolution [ Approve Motion

Public Hearing [ Other: Informational [J Attachments [J

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Crittenton Center applied for a $600,000 CDBG grant to make renovations and improvements to the
Transitional Therapeutic Home.

BACKGROUND:

On May 20th, 2025, a public hearing was held regarding the application and a resolution was made to submit
the application on behalf of the Crittenton Center. Woodbury County will be the recipient of the grant and the
Crittenton Center will be the sub-recipient. Funds will pass through the County to Crittenton Center.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None. Pass through grant

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes O No

RECOMMENDATION:

Appove the contract

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Appove the contract

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.




IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM

CONTRACT
RECIPIENT: Woodbury County
CONTRACT NUMBER: 25-CF-001
EFFECTIVE DATE: September 1, 2025
AWARD AMOUNT: $600,000
END DATE: August 31, 2028

THIS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM ("CDBG") CONTRACT is made by and between
the IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 1963 Bell Ave, Suite 200, Des Moines, lowa 50315 ("Authority") and
"Recipient", effective as of the date stated above.

WHEREAS, the Authority is designated to receive, administer, and disburse CDBG funds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to disburse grant funds to the Recipient for eligible purposes primarily benefiting
low and moderate income persons, eliminating slums and blight, or meeting community development needs having particular
urgency; and

WHEREAS, the Recipient submitted an Application for funding to the Authority and the Authority has approved the
Application; and

WHEREAS, in approving the Application the Authority has relied upon the Recipient's representations of proposed
Project activities, management and financial condition of the Recipient, investment of other Project funds, and other material
information contained therein; and

WHEREAS, the Recipient has certified to the Authority that the primary purpose for obtaining CDBG funds is to
primarily benefit low and moderate income persons, eliminate slums and blight, or meet community development needs having
a particular urgency;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Recipient accepts this grant upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. In
consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Contract and other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as
follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS
As used in this Contract, the following terms shall apply:
1.1 ACT. Act means Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended (42 U.S.C. 5301 et
seq.).
1.2 ACTIVITY. "Activity" means the description of eligible work, services, and other accomplishments, as authorized by

Section 105 of the "Act" and as further defined in 24 CFR 570.482, as revised April 1, 1997. Activities are found in the line
items in the Recipient's "Budget Activity" in lowaGrants.gov account and have specific performance targets.

1.3 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. "Administrative Code" means 261 lowa Administrative Code, Chapter 23 and 25. lowa
Administrative Code is the composite of all rules adopted and administered by the executive branch to implement state law
and policy.

14 ALLOWABLE COSTS. "Allowable Costs" are those costs which are identified in the "Budget Activity", Application,
and consistent with Federal regulations and guidelines applicable to the CDBG program.

15 APPLICATION. "Application" is the Application the Recipient submitted in lowaGrants.gov.

1.6 BUDGET. "Budget" means the "Budget Activity" as found in the Recipient’'s lowaGrants.gov account.

1.7 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (CDBG). "Community Development Block Grant
Program" means the grant program authorized by Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as
amended.

1.8 CONTRACT. "Contract" means this Contract and all of the notes, leases, assignments, mortgages, and similar

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 2 of 17

documents referred to in the Contract and all other instruments or documents executed by the Recipient or otherwise required
in connection with the Contract, including the CDBG grant Application together with any related submittal documents.

1.9 END DATE. "End Date" means the date the Contract ceases to be in force and effect. The Contract expires upon
the occurrence of one of the following: a) the Recipient fulfills the conditions and Project activities agreed to herein as of the
end date stated above; or b) the Contract is terminated by the Authority due to any default under Article 9.1; or ¢) the Contract
is terminated in accordance with provisions set forth in Sections 8 and 9 of the General Provisions, Attachment A of this
Contract.

1.10 GRANT. "Grant" means the award of CDBG funds to the Recipient for Project activities.
1.11 HUD. "HUD" means the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

1.12 IOWAGRANTS.GOV. "lowa Grants.gov" means lowa’s Funding Opportunity Search and Grant Management
System. This system allows you to electronically apply for and manage grants received by the state of lowa. Persons
accessing the system for this purpose are required to register online at www.lowaGrants.gov.

1.13 LOW- AND MODERATE-INCOME FAMILIES. "Low- and Moderate-Income Families" means those families earning
no more than 80 percent of the higher of the median family income of the county or the statewide nonmetropolitan area as
determined by the latest U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Section 8 income guidelines. Unrelated
individuals living together shall be considered as one-person families for this purpose.

1.14 LOW- AND MODERATE-INCOME PERSONS. "Low and Moderate Income Person" means a member of a low- and
moderate-income family as defined above.

1.15 PROJECT. "Project" means the totality of "Activity", to be performed by the Recipient as described in the
application the Recipient submitted in lowaGrants.gov and approved by the Authority.

1.16 RECIPIENT. "Recipient" means the entity identified above that has been selected to receive Program funds to
undertake the funded Project and agrees to comply with all applicable CDBG requirements, including those found in Title | of
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5302 et seq.), the CDBG program regulations at 24 CFR part
570, and any other HUD funded program as applicable. For purposes of this agreement the "Recipient" shall also be
considered to meet the definition and qualifications as a " Subrecipient" as defined in 2 CFR 200.93 and 2 CFR 200.330 and
agrees to receive this " Subaward" as defined in 2 CFR 200.92.

ARTICLE 2

FUNDING
2.1 FUNDING SOURCE. The source of funding for the Grant is a Federal appropriation for the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.
2.2 RECEIPT OF FUNDS. All payments under this Contract are subject to receipt by the Authority of sufficient Federal

funds for the CDBG program. Any termination, reduction or delay of CDBG funds to the Authority shall, at the option of the
Authority, result in the termination, reduction or delay of CDBG funds to the Recipient.

2.3 PRIOR COSTS. If any Recipient has received written approval from the Authority to incur certain costs prior to the
Effective Date of this Contract, then said written approval and the terms and conditions therein are incorporated herein and
made a part of this Contract by this reference as if fully set forth. Any such costs incurred prior to the Effective Date of this
Contract are subject to the Special Conditions and General Conditions of this Contract.

2.4 DISBURSEMENT OF LESS THAN THE TOTAL AWARD AMOUNT. If the total award amount has not been
requested by the Recipient within sixty (60) days after the End Date, then the Authority shall be under no obligation for further
disbursement. The Authority may allow access to funds after this time for allowable costs associated with the conduct of the
audits required in Article 2.0 of the General Provisions, Attachment A to this Contract.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001

Page 3 of 17
ARTICLE 3
TERMS OF GRANT
3.1 TIME OF PERFORMANCE. The services of the Recipient are to commence as of the Effective Date and shall be

undertaken in such a manner as to assure their expeditious completion. All of the services required hereunder shall be
completed on or before the End Date.

3.2 MAXIMUM PAYMENTS. It is expressly understood and agreed that the maximum amounts to be paid to the
Recipient by the Authority for any item of work or service shall conform to the "Budget Activity" as found in the Recipient’s
lowaGrants.gov account. It is further understood and agreed that the total of all payments to the Recipient by the Authority for
all work and services required under this Contract shall not exceed the Award Amount unless modified by written amendment
of this Contract as provided for in Section 1.0 of the General Provisions, Attachment A.

3.3 LOCAL EFFORT REQUIREMENTS. The Recipient agrees to provide local contribution to the Project as defined in
the "Local" column of the "Budget Activity". Expenditures above this level, necessary to complete the "Budget Activity", shall
be paid with local funds. Reports of the local funds expended shall be included in the Request for Payment/Activity Status
Report specified in Article 8.1(b), "Reports." The Authority does not agree to allow a delay in the contribution of local cash.
When a delay is allowed, the delay shall be until the specified date or until two-thirds of the grant amount has been drawn
down, whichever come first, at which time no further Federal funds may be drawn down until sufficient local cash has been
expended to attain the ratio of Federal to local funds specified in the Budget.

3.4 ADMINISTRATION. This Contract shall be administered in accordance with "Administrative Code" and all
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations, including the lowa Community Development Block Grant Management
Guide, which has been distributed by the Authority to the Recipient.

3.5 SATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE. For all projects requiring approval of final plans and specifications by the lowa
Department of Natural Resources, said approval shall be completed within eighteen (18) months of the Effective Date of this
contract.

ARTICLE 4
PERFORMANCE TARGET ACHIEVEMENT

4.1 PERFORMANCE TARGETS. By the End Date, the Recipient shall have accomplished the activities and
performance targets as described in the "Budget Activity", and as further elaborated in the Application, as approved by the
Authority.

4.2 DETERMINATION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE. The Authority has the final authority to assess whether the
Recipient has met their performance targets by the End Date. The Authority shall determine completion according to the
performance targets set forth in the "Budget Activity". The Authority reserves the right to monitor and measure at any time
during and after the Contract term the achievement of the performance targets.

ARTICLE 5
USE OF FUNDS

5.1 GENERAL. The Recipient shall perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by the Authority, the
work activities and services as written and described in the approved grant proposal (Application) as summarized in the
Recipient's approved Community Development Block Grant "Budget Activity".

5.2 PROGRAM INCOME. Proceeds generated from the use of CDBG funds are considered program income when the
total amount received by the Recipient in a fiscal year exceeds $35,000, at which time the entire $35,000 and excess are
considered program income. Prior to the End Date, all program income shall be expended prior to requesting additional
CDBG funds. Program income received by the Recipient after the End Date shall be returned to the Authority unless the
Recipient has submitted, and the Authority has approved, a re-use plan. If applicable, any CDBG proceeds derived from an
approved Revolving Loan Fund are considered program income, regardless of the amount received in any year.

53 BUDGET REVISIONS. Budget revisions shall be subject to prior approval of the Authority through the contract
amendment process. Budget revisions shall be compatible with the terms of this Contract and of such a nature as to qualify as
an allowable cost. Budget revisions requested during the final ninety (90) days of the Contract period will be approved by the
Authority only if it determines that the revisions are necessary to complete the Project.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 4 of 17

54 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE COST LIMITATIONS. Federal funds used for reasonable administrative costs, as
allowed under Federal and State regulations, shall be limited to ten percent (10%) of the total CDBG funds as specified in the
"Budget Activity". Total administrative costs (Federal plus local) on the Project shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of total
Project "Budget Activity". Program income received by the Recipient during the Contract period is subject to the ten percent
(10%) administrative cost limitation.

5.5 COST VARIATION.

(a) In the event that the total Project cost is less than the amount specified in the Agreement and the "Budget Activity", the
CDBG participation shall be reduced at the same ratio to the total Project cost reduction as the original ratio of the CDBG
funds to the total Project costs. Any disbursed excess above the reduced CDBG participation amount shall be returned
immediately to the Authority.

(b) In the event that the total Project cost is greater than the amount specified in the "Budget Activity", the Authority shall,
upon request, consider increasing the CDBG participation in the same ratio to the total increase in Project cost as the original
ratio of CDBG funds to the total Project costs. The consideration of an increase of CDBG funds for a Project shall be subject
to availability of funds, determination of reasonable and allowable costs, and all other applicable program rules.

(c) The Recipient may request the Authority to increase the CDBG participation to an amount that is higher than the
proportional ratio. The Authority may permit such a higher increase if, in the Authority’s judgment, the Recipient has
demonstrated financial hardship.

ARTICLE 6
CONDITIONS TO DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS

Unless and until the following conditions have been satisfied, the Authority shall be under no obligation to disburse to the
Recipient any amounts under this Contract:

6.1 CONTRACT EXECUTED. The Contract shall have been properly executed and, where required, acknowledged.

6.2 COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS. Funds shall not
be released under this Contract until the Recipient has satisfied the environmental review and release of funds requirements
set forth in 24 CFR Part 58, "Environmental Review Procedures for the Community Development Block Grant Program"”, and
summarized in the lowa CDBG Management Guide. In addition, construction contracts for non-exempt activities shall not be
executed and construction shall not begin prior to providing the Authority with documentation of the Recipient's compliance
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and 36 CFR Part 800, "Protection of Historic Properties." The
Recipient shall comply with any programmatic Memorandum of Understanding between the lowa Economic Development
Authority and the lowa State Historic Preservation Office, applicable to any activities included in this contract.

6.3 PERMITS AND LICENSES. The Authority reserves the right to withhold funds until the Authority has reviewed and
approved all material, such as permits or licenses from other state or Federal agencies, which may be required prior to Project
commencement.

6.4 EXCESSIVE FORCE POLICY. The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and
approve the Recipient's policy on protecting individuals engaged in nonviolent civil rights demonstrations from the use of
excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction, and enforcing state and local laws against physically
barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights demonstrations within its
jurisdiction, consistent with the provisions of Section 906 of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 and Subsection 104(1)
of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.

6.5 RESIDENTIAL ANTI/DISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN APPROVAL. The Authority,
prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and approve the Recipient's Residential Anti/Displacement and
Relocation Assistance Plan, consistent with the requirements of Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development
Act of 1974, as amended.

6.6 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY POLICY. The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and
approve the Recipient's equal opportunity policy, consistent with Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act
of 1974 as amended.

6.7 PROCUREMENT POLICY. The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and approve
the Recipient's procurement policy, consistent with 2 CFR 200.318.

6.8 FAIR HOUSING POLICY. The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and approve the

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 5 of 17

Recipient's fair housing policy, consistent with Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as
amended.

6.9 CODE OF CONDUCT. The Authority, prior to release of funds under this Contract, shall review and approve the
Recipient's code of conduct, consistent with 2 CFR 200.318.

6.10 CONDITIONS TO DISBURSEMENT FOR A SPECIFIC ACTIVITY. For each activity number listed below, the
Recipient shall comply with the corresponding applicable conditions prior to release of funds for that activity. If no applicable
conditions are identified below, none of the conditions in Article 6.10 shall apply to the activities funded by this Contract.

ACTIVITY NUMBER(S) APPLICABLE CONDITIONS
6 - Homeless Shelters 6.10(b) - Review of handicap accessibility-Letter from architect

(a) DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES APPROVAL. Construction shall not begin prior to the written approval
of the lowa Department of Natural Resources.

(b) REVIEW OF HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBILITY. Prior to release of funds for construction, the Authority shall receive
and review a signed statement from the Project architect that proposed construction will meet all handicapped accessibility
and ADA requirements based on approved design plans.

(c) DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH APPROVAL. Construction shall not begin prior to receipt of written approval from the
lowa Department of Health.

(d) FRANCHISE ORDINANCE/28E AGREEMENT. Prior to the release of funds for construction, the Recipient shall
submit, as appropriate, either an ordinance authorizing the franchise or an executed 28E Agreement for the activity for the
Authority's review.

(e) BULK PURCHASE AGREEMENT. Prior to release of funds for construction, the Recipient shall submit an executed
"Bulk Purchase Agreement" for the Authority's review.

(f) RURAL WATER CONNECTION FEE PROJECTS. Prior to release of funds for payment of a connection fee, the
Authority shall receive and review a copy of the water purchase agreement which outlines the basis for determining the
connection fee; a signed letter with the engineer's seal from the project engineer which certifies that construction is complete
and water service is available to the Recipient; and a formal invoice from the Subrecipient which requests payment of the
connection fee and provides a breakdown of the Federal and local dollar amounts. The Request for Payment/ Activity Status
Report for the connection fee will not be processed until the Authority has received the required documentation listed in this
Article.

(9) STATE BUILDING CODE BUREAU APPROVAL. Bidding for construction shall not be conducted prior to the written
approval of the final plans by the State Building Code Bureau of the lowa Department of Public Safety.

(h) FACADE EASEMENTS. Prior to release of funds for construction, the Recipient shall submit, as appropriate, signed
copies of all recorded fagade easements with property owners when required for downtown revitalization.

(i) STORMWATER DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. Prior to bidding, the Recipient shall submit
project final design and construction documents for the Authority to review for consistency with the original Application or
"Budget Activity" subsequently approved by the Authority. Recipient shall also consult with lowa Department of Agriculture and
Land Stewardship (IDALS) Urban Conservation Program Team on project stormwater management designs at 30, 60, 90
percent, and final design. The Recipient shall then secure and upload to www.iowagrants.gov a letter from IDALS confirming
stormwater management designs meet the requirements of the lowa Green Streets Criteria and the lowa Stormwater
Management Manual.

0] IOWA GREEN STREETS CRITERIA CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. Prior to bidding, the Recipient shall submit
final design and construction documents and lowa Green Streets Criteria Appendix C for the Authority to review for
consistency with the original Application subsequently approved by the Authority when required for applicable Community
Facilities and Downtown Revitalization projects as identified in their application.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 6 of 17

(k) PERPETUAL RESTRICTIONS. Prior to release of funds for acquisition, the Recipient shall provide the Authority
evidence that appropriate perpetual deed restrictions and agreement for covenants and restrictions as required pursuant to
Sections 5.7 and 5.8 of this Contract.

6.11 CONDITIONS TO DISBURSEMENT NECESSITATING OUTSIDE AGENCY ACTION. For each activity number
listed below, the Recipient shall comply with the corresponding applicable conditions prior to release of funds for that activity.
If no applicable conditions are identified below, none of the conditions in Article 6.11 shall apply to the activities funded by this
Contract.

ACTIVITY NUMBER(S) APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OUTSIDE AGENCY
6 - Homeless Shelters 6.7(b) Woodbury County

(a) FUNDING. Funding shall be contingent upon receipt of adequate funds from the identified agency to complete the
Project described. The Recipient must submit a copy of the notification of said funding commitment to the Authority before
funds can be released to the Recipient. If there is a reduction in the amount of the funds available from this source, the
Recipient shall identify an alternative source of funds, and the change in funding sources shall be reflected in an amendment
to this Contract. If the funds from the identified agency are rejected, this award is no longer valid. If the other funding is not
obligated to the Recipient within 6 months following the announcement of the CDBG award, the CDBG funds shall be
considered available to the Authority for allocation to other Projects, and the provisions of the CDBG Administrative Rules
concerning contingent awards shall apply.

(b) SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT. Prior to release of funds under this contract and prior to the Recipient entering in to
a Subrecipient Agreement for the administration of this award, the Recipient shall seek and obtain the Authority's review and
approval of the Recipient Agreement (as applicable).

(c) CONTINGENT FUNDING. The Authority has awarded these funds contingent upon receipt of other funding from the
identified agency.

(d) LONG TERM LEASE AGREEMENT. Prior to release of funds, the Authority shall review and approve a Long Term
Lease Agreement or any other binding agreement deemed appropriate by the Authority between two identified agencies. The
agreement shall guarantee that the constructed facility as described in this Contract will be allowed to physically remain and
continue to be used for the specified purpose. In the event that the use of the facility changes, the Recipient may be required
to repay all or part of the grant award as described in Article 9.4 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 7
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF RECIPIENT

To induce the Authority to make the Grant referred to in this Contract, the Recipient represents, covenants and warrants that:

71 AUTHORITY. The Recipient is duly authorized and empowered to execute and deliver the Contract. All required
actions on the Recipient's part, such as appropriate resolution of its governing board for the execution and delivery of the
Contract, have been effectively taken.

7.2 FINANCIAL INFORMATION. All financial statements and related materials concerning the Project provided to the
Authority are true and correct in all material respects and completely and accurately represent the subject matter thereof as of
the Effective Date of the statements and related materials, and no material adverse change has occurred since that date.

7.3 APPLICATION. The contents of the Application the Recipient submitted to the Authority for funding is a complete
and accurate representation of the Project as of the date of submission and there has been no material adverse change in the
organization, operation, or key personnel of the Recipient since the date the Recipient submitted its Application to the
Authority.

7.4 CLAIMS AND PROCEEDINGS. There are no actions, lawsuits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the
Recipient, threatened against the Recipient affecting in any manner whatsoever their rights to execute the Contract or the
ability of the Recipient to make the payments required under the Contract, or to otherwise comply with the obligations of the
Contract. There are no actions, lawsuits or proceedings at law or in equity, or before any governmental or administrative
authority pending or, to the knowledge of the Recipient, threatened against or affecting the Recipient or any property involved
in the Project.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001

Page 7 of 17
7.5 PRIOR AGREEMENTS. The Recipient has not entered into any verbal or written contracts, agreements or
arrangements of any kind which are inconsistent with the Contract.
7.6 EFFECTIVE DATE. The covenants, warranties and representations of this Article are made as of the Effective Date

of this Contract and shall be deemed to be renewed and restated by the Recipient at the time of each advance or request for
disbursement of funds.

ARTICLE 8
COVENANTS OF THE RECIPIENT

8.1 AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS. Until the Project has been closed out, audited, and approved by the Authority, the
Recipient covenants with the Authority that:

(a) PROJECT WORK AND SERVICES. The Recipient shall perform the work and services detailed in the "Budget
Activity" by the End Date.

(b) REPORTS. The Recipient shall prepare, review and sign the requests and reports as specified below in the form
and content specified by the Authority. The Recipient shall review all Requests for Payment and verify that claimed
expenditures are allowable costs. The Recipient shall maintain documentation adequate to support the claimed costs. After
the Recipient has submitted its 1st Request for Payment the Recipient, shall continue to submit Request for Payment at least
semiannually for each "Budget Activity".

The Authority reserves the right to require more frequent submission of the Activity Status Report than as shown below if, in
the opinion of the Authority, more frequent submissions would help improve the Recipient's CDBG program.

REPORT DUE DATE
1. Request for Payment / Activity Status Report As funds are needed
2. Section 3 Report (if applicable) Submitted annually

3. Updates to the Applicant/Recipient Disclosure Report As needed due to changes

4. lowa Green Streets Criteria Appendices D and Upon construction completion
E or F (if applicable)

5. Final request for Payment / Status Report Within 30 days of End Date
6. Form 3-D, Final Accomplishments and Within 30 days of End Date
Equal Opportunity Data (if applicable)
7. Single Audit Form (required) Within 30 days of receipt of Notice to Close letter
8. Audit Report (if applicable) Within 30 days of audit completion

(c) RECORDS. The Recipient shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to all costs and
expenses incurred and revenues received under this Contract in sufficient detail to reflect all costs, direct and indirect, of labor,
materials, equipment, supplies, services and other costs and expenses of whatever nature, for which payment is claimed
under this Contract. The Recipient shall maintain books, records and documents in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance
with the Contract and shall maintain these materials for the greater of three years after the date the recipient is notified
that the state CDBG contract has been closed with HUD, or the period required by other applicable laws and regulations as
described in § 570.487 and § 570.488. Records shall be retained beyond the prescribed period if any litigation or audit is
begun or if a claim is instituted involving the grant or agreement covered by the records. In these instances, the records shall
be retained until the litigation, audit or claim has been finally resolved.

(d) ACCESS TO RECORDS/INSPECTIONS. The Recipient shall, without prior notice and at any time, permit HUD or its
representatives, the General Accounting Office or its representatives, and the Authority, its representatives or the State

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 8 of 17

Auditor, to examine, audit and/or copy (i) any plans and work details pertaining to the Project, (ii) any or all of the Recipient's
books, records and accounts, and (iii) all other documentation or materials related to this Contract. The Recipient shall provide
proper facilities for making such examination and/or inspection.

(e) USE OF GRANT FUNDS. The Recipient shall expend funds received under the Contract only for the purposes and
activities described in its CDBG Application, this Contract and as approved by the Authority.

(f) DOCUMENTATION. The Recipient shall deliver to the Authority, upon request, (i) copies of all contracts or
agreements relating to the Project, (ii) invoices, receipts, statements or vouchers relating to the Project, (iii) a list of all unpaid
bills for labor and materials in connection with the Project, and (iv) budgets and revisions showing estimated Project costs and
funds required at any given time to complete and pay for the Project.

(9) NOTICE OF PROCEEDINGS. The Recipient shall promptly notify the Authority of the initiation of any claims,
lawsuits or proceedings brought against the Recipient.

(h) INDEMNIFICATION. The Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, its officers and employees from
and against any and all losses in connection with the Project.

0] NOTICE TO AUTHORITY. In the event the Recipient becomes aware of any material alteration in the Project,
initiation of any investigation or proceeding involving the Project, or any other similar occurrence, the Recipient shall promptly
notify the Authority.

@) CERTIFICATIONS. The Recipient certifies and ensures that the Project will be conducted and administered in
compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations and orders. Certain statutes are expressly made applicable
to activities assisted under the Act by the Act itself, while other laws not referred to in the Act may be applicable to such
activities by their own terms. The Recipient certifies and assures compliance with the applicable orders, laws and
implementing regulations, including but not limited to, the following:

(i) Financial Management guidelines issued by the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget, OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart E.

(i) Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended (42 U.S.C.
5301 et seq.), and regulations which implement these laws.

(iii) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended (Public Law 88-352; 42 U.S.C. 2000d
et seq.); Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended (Public Law 90-284; 42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.); the lowa
Civil Rights Act of 1965; Chapter 19B.7, Code of lowa, and lowa Executive Order #34, dated July 22, 1988; lowa
Code Chapter 216, Presidential Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259; Presidential
Executive Order 11246, as amended by Presidential Executive Order 11375; Section 504 of the Vocational
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. 794); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended (42 U.S.C.
6101 et seq.); the Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable, (P. L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213); and
related Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity statutes; and regulations which implement these laws.

(iv) Fair Housing Act, Public Law 90-284. The Fair Housing Act is part of Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 as amended (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.); Section 109 of the Title | of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974, as amended; Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 as amended
(12 U.S.C. 1701u); and regulations which implement these laws.

(v) Department of Housing and Urban Development regulations governing the CDBG
program, 24 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 570.

(vi) Section 102 of the Department of Housing and Urban Development Reform Act of 1989
(P.L. 101 235), and implementing regulations.

(vii)  Requirements for the Notification, Evaluation, and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint
Hazards in Federally Owned Residential Property and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance; Final Rule (24 CFR
Part 35, et al.); Lead Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 - 4846), as amended, and implementing
regulations.

(viii)  Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-5), where applicable under

Section 110 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 et seq.); the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874); and regulations

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 9 of 17

which implement these laws.
(ix) National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and implementing regulations.

(x) Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as
amended, (URA)(42 U.S.C. 4601 - 4655) and implementing regulations; Section 104(d) of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, governing the residential antidisplacement and relocation
assistance plan; and Section 105(a)(11) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended,
governing optional relocation assistance.

(xi) Administrative rules adopted by the lowa Economic Development Authority, 261 lowa
Administrative Code.

(xii)  Financial and Program Management guidelines issued by the lowa Economic
Development Authority; the lowa CDBG Management Guide; and the Authority Audit Guide.

(xiii)  Government-wide Restriction on Lobbying Certification [Section 319 of Public Law 101-
121] and implementing regulations.

(xiv)  Fair Labor Standards Act and implementing regulations.

(xv)  Hatch Act (regarding political partisan activity and Federally funded activities) and
implementing regulations.

(xvi)  Citizen participation, hearing and access to information requirements found under
sections 104(a)(2) and 104(a)(3) of Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.

(xvii)  Subsection 104(l) of Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as
amended, regarding the prohibition of the use of excessive force in nonviolent civil rights demonstrations and the
enforcement of state and local laws on barring entrance to or exit from facilities subject to such demonstrations.

(xviii) Drug-Free Workplace Act.

(k) BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA (BABA). The Grantee must comply with the requirements of the Build America,
Buy America (BABA) Act, 41 USC 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as may be amended, if applicable to the
Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to HUD's Notice, "Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and
2023 of Build America, Buy America Provisions as Applied to Recipients of HUD Federal Assistance" (88 FR 17001), any
funds obligated by HUD on or after the applicable listed effective dates, are subject to BABA requirements, unless excepted by
a waiver.

0] MAINTENANCE OF ACTIVITY PROPERTY AND INSURANCE. The following provision shall apply to the project as
appropriate. The Recipient and any subrecipient shall maintain the Project property in good repair and condition, ordinary
wear and tear excepted, and shall not suffer or commit waste or damage upon the Project property. The Recipient or
subrecipient shall pay for and maintain insurance as is customary in its industry. This insurance shall be in an amount not less
than the full insurable value of the Project property. The subrecipient shall name the Recipient and Authority as mortgagees
and/or an additional loss payees, as appropriate. The Recipient shall name the Authority as a mortgagee and/or an additional
loss payee, as appropriate. The Recipient or subrecipient shall maintain copies of the policies as appropriate.

(m) PROJECT PHOTOS. At IEDA's request, Recipient will assist IEDA in obtaining photos of the project by an
approved photographer. If photos are requested, Recipient will coordinate with the approved photographer and provide any
necessary access to the project.

8.2 NEGATIVE COVENANTS. During the Contract term the Recipient covenants with the Authority that it shall not,
without the prior written disclosure to and prior written consent of the Authority, directly or indirectly:

(a) ASSIGNMENT. Assign its rights and responsibilities under this Contract.

(b) ADMINISTRATION. Discontinue administration activities under the Contract.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 10 of17

ARTICLE 9
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

9.1 EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The following shall constitute Events of Default under this Contract:

(a) MATERIAL MISREPRESENTATION. If at any time any representation, warranty or statement made or furnished to
the Authority by, or on behalf of, the Recipient in connection with this Contract or to induce the Authority to make a grant to the
Recipient shall be determined by the Authority to be incorrect, false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect when
made or furnished and shall not have been remedied to the Authority's satisfaction within thirty (30) days after written notice by
the Authority is given to the Recipient.

(b) NONCOMPLIANCE. If there is a failure by the Recipient to comply with any of the covenants, terms or conditions
contained in this Contract.

(c) END DATE. If the Project, in the sole judgment of the Authority, is not completed on or before the End Date.

(d) MISSPENDING. If the Recipient expends Grant proceeds for purposes not described in the Application, this
Contract, or as authorized by the Authority.

(e) INSURANCE. If loss, theft, damage, or destruction of any substantial portion of the property of the Recipient occurs
for which there is either no insurance coverage or for which, in the opinion of the Authority, there is insufficient insurance
coverage. This provision applies to the project as appropriate.

9.2 NOTICE OF DEFAULT. In the event of default, the Authority shall issue a written notice of default providing therein
a fifteen (15) day period in which the Recipient shall have an opportunity to cure, provided that cure is possible and feasible.
9.3 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT. If, after opportunity to cure, the default remains, the Authority shall have the right in
addition to any rights and remedies specifically to it to do one or more of the following:

(a) exercise any remedy provided by law,

(b) require immediate repayment of up to the full amount of funds disbursed to the Recipient under this Contract plus
interest.
9.4 FAILURE TO MEET PERFORMANCE TARGETS. If the Recipient is determined by the Authority to be in default of

this Contract due to meeting less than one hundred percent (100%) of its Performance Targets, the Authority may require full
Grant repayment or, at its discretion, the Authority may require partial repayment of Grant proceeds which allows partial credit
for the performance targets which have been met, or the Authority may require other remedies that the Authority determines to
be appropriate. For Housing rehabilitation projects only, performance targets shall include income targeting and affordability
requirements as required in 261 Administrative Code 25.4(1).

ARTICLE 10
INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS

10.1 DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE. The Recipient shall comply with the terms and conditions of
the following documents which are hereby incorporated by reference:

(a) Budget Activity, as found in Recipient’s lowaGrants.gov account.

(b) Application, "CDBG Application", as found in Recipient’s lowaGrants.gov account.

(c) Attachment A, "CDBG Program General Provisions", dated October 3, 2018.

(d) "lowa Community Development Block Grant Management Guide", as found on the Authority's website at
www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/Community/CDBG.

10.2 ORDER OF PRIORITY. In the event of a conflict between documents of this Contract, the following order of priority
shall govern:

(a) Articles 1 through 11 herein.

(b) Attachment A, "CDBG Program General Provisions", dated October 3, 2018.

(c) Budget Activity, as found in Recipient’s lowaGrants.gov account.

(d) Application, "CDBG Application”, as found in Recipient’s lowaGrants.gov account.

(e) "lowa Community Development Block Grant Management Guide", as found on the Authority's website at
https://www.iowaeda.com/cdbg/.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 11 of17

ARTICLE 11
MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 LIMIT ON GRANT PROCEEDS ON HAND. The Recipient shall request Project funds only as needed and shall not
have more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) of Grant proceeds, including earned interest, on hand for a period of longer
than ten (10) working days, after which time any surplus amount shall be returned to the Authority.

11.2 BINDING EFFECT. This Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Authority and Recipient
and their respective successors, legal representatives and assigns. The obligations, covenants, warranties,
acknowledgments, waivers, agreements, terms, provisions and conditions of this Contract shall be jointly and severally
enforceable against the parties to this Contract.

11.3 SURVIVAL OF CONTRACT. If any portion of this Contract is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder
shall be valid and enforceable. The provisions of this Contract shall survive the execution of all instruments herein mentioned
and shall continue in full force until the Project is completed as determined by the Authority.

11.4 GOVERNING LAW. This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of lowa, and any
action relating to the Contract shall only be commenced in the lowa District Court for Polk County or the United States District
Court for the Southern District of lowa.

11.5 NOTICES. Whenever this Contract requires or permits any funding request, notice, report, or written request by one
party to another, it shall be in delivered through lowaGrants.gov. Alternately the Authority may rely on the United States Mail
as the Authority deems appropriate. Any such notice given hereunder shall be deemed delivered upon the earlier of actual
receipt or two (2) business days after posting. The Authority may rely on the address of the Recipient set forth heretofore, as
modified from time to time, as being the address of the Recipient.

11.6 WAIVERS. No waiver by the Authority of any default hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other default or of
the same default on any future occasion. No delay on the part of the Authority in exercising any right or remedy hereunder
shall operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right or remedy by the Authority shall preclude future
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy.

11.7 LIMITATION. It is agreed by the Recipient that the Authority shall not, under any circumstances, be obligated
financially under this Contract except to disburse funds according to the terms of the Contract.

11.8 HEADINGS. The headings in this Contract are intended solely for convenience of reference and shall be given no
effect in the construction and interpretation of this Contract.

11.9 INTEGRATION. This Contract contains the entire understanding between the Recipient and the Authority and any
representations that may have been made before or after the signing of this Contract, which are not contained herein, are
nonbinding, void and of no effect. None of the parties have relied on any such prior representation in entering into this
Contract.

11.10 COUNTERPARTS. This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

11.11 IOWAGRANTS.GOV. The Authority reserves the right to require the Recipient to utilize the lowaGrants.gov system
to conduct business associated with this Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as of the Effective Date first stated.
RECIPIENT: Woodbury County

BY:

Chairperson Typed or Printed Name and Title
Woodbury County

620 Douglas Sttreet

Sioux City, lowa 51101

IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 12 of 17

BY:

Deborah Durham, Director

ATTACHMENT A

GENERAL PROVISIONS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM
October 3, 2018

1.0 AMENDMENT.

(a) WRITING REQUIRED. The Contract will only be amended through written prior approval of the Authority
through lowaGrants.gov. Examples of situations where amendments are required include extensions for completion of Project
activities, changes to the Project including, but not limited to, alteration of existing approved activities or inclusion of new
activities.

(b) UNILATERAL MODIFICATION. Notwithstanding paragraph "a" above, the Authority may unilaterally
modify the Contract at will in order to accommodate any change in the Act or any change in the interpretation of the Act or any
applicable Federal, State or local laws, regulations, rules or policies. A copy of such unilateral modification will be given to the
Recipient as an amendment to this Contract.

(c) AUTHORITY REVIEW. The Authority will consider whether an amendment request is so substantial as to
necessitate reevaluating the Authority’s original funding decision on the Project. An amendment will be denied if it
substantially alters the circumstances under which the Project funding was originally approved; if it does not meet
requirements set forth in lowa Administrative Code 261-23, as applicable; or if it conflicts with the Program Rules.

2.0 AUDIT REQUIREMENTS.

(a) SINGLE AUDIT. The Recipient shall ensure that an audit is performed in accordance with the Single Audit
Act Amendment of 1996; OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart E; and OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart F, as applicable; and the lowa
CDBG Management Guide.

(b) ADDITIONAL AUDIT. As a condition of the grant to the Recipient, the Authority reserves the right to
require the Recipient to submit to a post Project completion audit and review in addition to the audit required above.

3.0 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. The Recipient shall comply with all applicable State and Federal
laws, rules, ordinances, regulations and orders including all Federal laws and regulations described in 24 CFR subpart K.

4.0 UNALLOWABLE COSTS. If the Authority determines at any time, whether through monitoring, audit, closeout
procedures or by other means or process, that the Recipient has expended funds which are unallowable, the Recipient will be
notified of the questioned costs and given an opportunity to justify questioned costs prior to the Authority's final determination
of the disallowance of costs. Appeals of any determinations will be handled in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17A,
lowa Code. Ifitis the Authority's final determination that costs previously paid by the Authority are unallowable under the
terms of the Contract, the expenditures will be disallowed and the Recipient will repay to the Authority any and all disallowed
costs. Real property under the Recipient's control in excess of $25,000 and equipment that was acquired or improved in
whole or in part with CDBG funds shall be used to meet one of the National Objectives pursuant to 24 CFR 570.208 until five
(5) years after expiration of the Agreement. If Recipient fails to use CDBG assisted real property that meets a National
Objective during the five (5) year period the Recipient shall pay IEDA an amount equal to the current fair market value of the
property less any portion of the value attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG funds for acquisition or improvement to the
real property.

5.0 PROGRAM INCOME. All program income, as defined in 2 CFR part 200, subpart E; 24 CFR 570.489; and lowa
Administrative Code 261-23, if applicable; shall be added to the Project "Budget Activity" and used to further eligible Project
objectives as defined in the Contract and the "Budget Activity" in the CDBG Application for funding. Program income not used
to further Project objectives will be deducted from the total Project "Budget Activity" for the purpose of determining the amount
of reimbursable costs under the Contract. In cases of dispute, final decisions regarding the definition or disposition of program
income shall be made by the Authority.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 13 of 17

6.0 INTEREST EARNED. To the extent that interest is earned on advances of CDBG funds, this interest shall be returned
to the Authority, except that the Recipient may keep interest amounts of up to $100 per year for administrative expenses.

7.0 SUSPENSION. When the Recipient has failed to comply with the Contract, award conditions or standards, the
Authority may, on reasonable notice to the Recipient, suspend the Contract and withhold future payments, or prohibit the
Recipient from incurring additional obligations of CDBG funds. Suspension may continue until the Recipient completes the
corrective action as required by the Authority. The Authority may allow such necessary and proper costs which the Recipient
could not reasonably avoid during the period of suspension provided the Authority concludes that such costs meet the
provisions of HUD regulations issued pursuant to OMB 2 CFR part 200, subpart E.

8.0 TERMINATION.

(a) FOR CAUSE. The Authority may terminate the Contract in whole, or in part, whenever the Authority
determines that the Recipient has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of the Contract.

(b) FOR CONVENIENCE. The Parties may terminate the Contract in whole, or in part, when all parties agree
that the continuation of the Project would not produce beneficial results commensurate with the future disbursement of funds.

(c) DUE TO REDUCTION OR TERMINATION OF CDBG FUNDING. At the discretion of the Authority, the
Contract may be terminated in whole, or in part, if there is a reduction or termination of CDBG Federal block grant funds to the
State.

9.0 PROCEDURES UPON TERMINATION.

(a) NOTICE. The Authority shall provide written notice to the Recipient of the decision to terminate, the
reason(s) for the termination, and the effective date of the termination. If there is a partial termination due to a reduction in
funding, the notice will set forth the change in funding and the changes in the approved "Budget Activity". The Recipient shall
not incur new obligations beyond the effective date and shall cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible. The
Authority's share of noncancelable obligations which the Authority determines were properly incurred prior to notice of
cancellation will be allowable costs.

(b) RIGHTS IN PRODUCTS. All finished and unfinished documents, data, reports or other material prepared
by the Recipient under the Contract shall, at the Authority’s option, become the property of the Authority.

(c) RETURN OF FUNDS. The Recipient shall return to the Authority all unencumbered funds within one week
of receipt of the notice of termination. Any costs previously paid by the Authority which are subsequently determined to be
unallowable through audit, monitoring, or closeout procedures shall be returned to the Authority within thirty (30) days of the
disallowance.

10.0 ENFORCEMENT EXPENSES. The Recipient shall pay upon demand any and all reasonable fees and expenses of
the Authority, including the fees and expenses of its attorneys, experts and agents, in connection with the exercise or
enforcement of any of the rights of the Authority under this Contract.

11.0 INDEMNIFICATION. The Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, its officers and employees, from
and against any and all losses, accruing or resulting from any and all claims subcontractors, laborers and any other person,
firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work, services, materials or supplies in connection with the performance of this
Contract, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm or corporation who may be injured or
damaged by the Recipient in the performance of this Contract.

12.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

(a) GENERAL. Except for the use of CDBG funds to pay salaries and other related administrative or
personnel costs, no persons identified in paragraph (b) below who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities
with respect to CDBG assisted activities or who are in a position to participate in a decision making process or gain inside
information with regard to such activities may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from a CDBG assisted activity or
have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for
themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

(b) PERSONS COVERED. The conflict of interest provisions described above apply to any person who is an

employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the Recipient, or of any designated public agencies, or
subrecipients which are receiving CDBG funds.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 14 of17

(c) CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. Chapter 68B, Code of lowa, the "lowa Public Officials Act", shall be adhered
to by the Recipient, its officials and employees.

13.0 USE OF DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, OR INELIGIBLE CONTRACTORS OR SUBRECIPIENTS. CDBG funds shall
not be used directly or indirectly to employ, award contracts to, or otherwise engage the service of, or fund any contractor or
subrecipient during any period of debarment, suspension, or placement in ineligible status under the provisions of 24 CFR Part
24 or any applicable law or regulation of the Department of Labor.

14.0 CIVIL RIGHTS.

(a) DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT. The Recipient shall not discriminate against any qualified
employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender
identity, familial status, physical or mental disability. The Recipient may take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual
orientation, familial status, gender identity, or physical or mental disability. Such action shall include, but may not be limited to,
the following: employment, upgrading, promotion, demotion or transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; lay-off or
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including an apprenticeship. The Recipient
agrees to post notices setting forth the provisions of the nondiscrimination clause in conspicuous places so as to be available
to employees. Upon the State's written request, the Recipient shall submit to the State a copy of its affirmative action plan,
containing goals and time specifications, and accessibility plans and policies as required under lowa Administrative Code
chapter 11—121.

(b) CONSIDERATION FOR EMPLOYMENT. The Recipient shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for
employees placed by or on behalf of the Recipient, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, physical or mental disability,
or familial status.

(c) SOLICITATION AND ADVERTISEMENT. The Recipient shall list all suitable employment openings in the
State Employment Service local offices or shall list all suitable employment openings with lowa Workforce Development's job
search website, currently known as lowaWORKS.

(d) CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE IN EMPLOYMENT. The Recipient shall comply with all relevant provisions
of the lowa Civil Rights Act of 1965 as amended; Chapter 19B.7, and Chapter 216, Code of lowa; Federal Executive Order
11246, as amended; Title VI of the U.S. Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d et seq.); the Fair Labor
Standards Act (29 U.S.C. Section 201 et seq.); The Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable, (P.L. 101 336, 42 U.S.C.
12101-12213); Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794); and the Age Discrimination
Act of 1975 as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6101 et seq.). The Recipient will furnish all information and reports requested by
the State of lowa or required by or pursuant to the rules and regulations thereof and will permit access to payroll and
employment records by the State of lowa to investigate compliance with these rules and regulations.

(e) CERTIFICATION REGARDING GOVERNMENT-WIDE RESTRICTION ON LOBBYING. The Recipient
certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(i) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Recipient, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding any
Federal contract, making any Federal grant, making any Federal loan, entering into any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

(i) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to
Report Federal Lobbying" in accordance with its instruction.

(iii) The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

(iv) This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 15 of 17

transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

(f) PROGRAM NONDISCRIMINATION. The Recipient shall conform with requirements of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) and HUD regulations issued pursuant thereto contained in 24 CFR Part 1. No
person in the United States shall, on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex or religion or religious affiliation, be excluded
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole
or in part with funds made available through this Contract. Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of age under the
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et. seq.) or with respect to an otherwise qualified individual with a disability as
provided in the Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable, (P.L. 101 336, 42 U.S.C. 12101 12213) or Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794) shall also apply to any such program activity, or Project.

(9) FAIR HOUSING. The Recipient shall comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 3601
et seq.), generally known as the Fair Housing Act, and with HUD regulations found at 24 CFT Part 100 and 24 CFR Part 107,
issued in compliance with Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Federal Executive Order 12259. The recipient
shall also comply with Section 109, Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended.

(h) LEAD-BASED PAINT HAZARDS. The Recipient shall comply with requirements of the Notification,
Evaluation, and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Federally Owned Residential Property and Housing Receiving
Federal Assistance; Final Rule (24 CFR Part 35, et al.); Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 - 4846),
as amended, and implementing regulations.

(i) SECTION 3 COMPLIANCE. The recipient shall comply with provisions for training, employment and
contracting in accordance with 24 CFR part 75 and Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as
amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (Section 3). All Section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the
Section 3 clause):

(i) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and
Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to
ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted
projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income
persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.

(i) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 75, which implement
Section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under
no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 75 regulations.

(iii) The contractor agrees to post copies of a notice advising workers of the Contractor's commitments under
Section 3 in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and
employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set forth
minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the
qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions;
and the anticipated date the work shall begin.

(iv) The contractor agrees to provide written notice of employment and contracting opportunities to all known
Section 3 Workers and Section 3 Businesses.

(v) The contractor agrees to hire, to the greatest extent feasible, Section 3 workers as new hires, or provide
written justification to the recipient that is consistent with 24 CFR Part 75, describing why it was unable to meet
minimum numerical hiring goals, despite its efforts to comply with the provisions of this clause.

(vi) The contractor agrees to maintain records documenting Section 3 residents that were hired to work on
previous Section 3 covered projects or activities that were retained by the contractor for subsequent Section 3
covered projects or activities.

(vii) The contractor agrees to post contract and job opportunities to the Opportunity Portal, and will check the
Business Registry for businesses located in the project area.

(viii) The contractor agrees to include compliance with Section 3 requirements in every subcontract for Section
3 projects as defined in 24 CFR part 75, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable
provision of the subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part
75. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that
the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 75.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 16 of 17

(ix) The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled
(1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to
whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 75 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to
circumvent the contractor’s obligations under 24 CFR part 75.

(x) The contractor will certify that they have followed prioritization of effort in 24 CFR part 75.19 for all
employment and training opportunities. The contractor will further certify that it meets or exceeds the applicable
Section3 benchmarks, defined in 24 CFR Part 75.23, and if not, shall describe in detail the qualitative efforts it
has taken to pursue low- and very low-income persons for economic opportunities.

(xi) Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 75 may result in sanctions, termination of this
contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.

(i) NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS. In the event of the Recipient's noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of the aforesaid rules, regulations, or requests, this Contract may be
canceled, terminated, or suspended either wholly or in part. In addition, the State of lowa may take further action, imposing
other sanctions and invoking additional remedies as provided by the lowa Civil Rights Act of 1965 (Chapter 216, Code of lowa)
or as otherwise provided by law.

(k) INCLUSION IN SUBCONTRACTS. The Recipient will include the provisions of the preceding paragraphs of
Section 14 in every subcontract unless exempt by the State of lowa, and said provisions will be binding on each subcontractor.
The Recipient will take such action with respect to any subcontract as the State of lowa may direct as a means of enforcing
such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. In the event the Recipient becomes involved in or is threatened by
litigation with a subcontractor or provider as a result of such direction by the State of lowa, the Recipient may request the State
of lowa to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State of lowa.

15.0 POLITICAL ACTIVITY. No portion of program funds shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further the
election or defeat of any candidate for public office. Neither the program nor the funds provided therefore, nor the personnel
employed in the administration of this Contract, shall be in any way or to any extent engaged in the conduct of political
activities in contravention of The Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 15).

16.0 LIMIT ON RECOVERY OF CAPITAL COSTS. The Recipient will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public
improvements assisted in whole or part under this Contract by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied
by persons of low and moderate income, including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to
such public improvements, unless (i) funds received under this Contract are used to pay the proportion of such fee or
assessment that relates to the capital costs of such public improvements that are financed from revenue sources other than
under Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, or (ii) for purposes of assessing any
amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income who are not persons of very low
income, the Recipient has certified to the Authority that it lacks sufficient funds received under Title | of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, to comply with the requirements of clause (i) above.

17.0 PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES. In accordance with 24 CFR 570.207 (a): The following activities may not be assisted with
CDBG funds:

(a) BUILDINGS OR PORTIONS THEREOF, USED FOR THE GENERAL CONDUCT OF GOVERNMENT AS DEFINED AT
§ 570.3(D) CANNOT BE ASSISTED WITH CDBG FUNDS. This does not include, however, the removal of architectural
barriers under § 570.201(c) involving any such building. Also, where acquisition of real property includes an existing
improvement which is to be used in the provision of a building for the general conduct of government, the portion of the
acquisition cost attributable to the land is eligible, provided such acquisition meets a national objective described in § 570.208.

(b) GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSES. Except as otherwise specifically authorized in this subpart or under 2 CFR
part 200, subpart E, expenses required to carry out the regular responsibilities of the unit of general local government are not
eligible for assistance under this part.

(c) POLITICAL ACTIVITIES. CDBG funds shall not be used to finance the use of facilities or equipment for political
purposes or to engage in other partisan political activities, such as candidate forums, voter transportation, or voter registration.
However, a facility originally assisted with CDBG funds may be used on an incidental basis to hold political meetings,
candidate forums, or voter registration campaigns, provided that all parties and organizations have access to the facility on an
equal basis, and are assessed equal rent or use charges, if any.

18.0 FEDERAL GOVERNMENT RIGHTS. If all or a portion of the funding used to pay for the Deliverables is being
provided through a grant from the Federal Government, recipient, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or provider

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



Contract Number: 25-CF-001
Page 17 of17

acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to applicable federal laws, regulations, circulars and bulletins, the awarding agency of
the Federal Government reserves certain rights including, without limitation a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government purposes, the
Deliverables developed under this Contract and the copyright in and to such Deliverables.

19.0 IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FRAUD AND WASTE POLICY. The Authority has zero tolerance

for the commission or concealment of acts of fraud, waste, or abuse. Allegations of such acts will be investigated and pursued
to their logical conclusion, including legal action where warranted.

Prepared by: Sarah Plowman



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:  9/2/2025 ! Weekly Agenda Date: 9/09/2025

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  Kenny Schmitz Building Services

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:
Architectural Services Contract- LEC Demolition (407 7th Street)

ACTION REQUIRED:

Approve Ordinance I:l Approve Resolution I:l Approve Motion E
Public Hearing I:' Other: Informational I:l Attachments IE
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Building Services has requested the attached Architectural Contract from CMBA Architects.
By contract CMBA will draft demolition plans and specifications for the old law enforcement center located at 407 7th Street.
Demolition plans & specifications will be provided to interested parties to be utilized in the competitive bid process.

BACKGROUND:

The eventual demolition of the old LEC is an on-going and continued complicated process.

There have been many tasks to achieve, compliance requirements to follow, and work approvals prior to the actual demolition
phase. Compliance, regulations, State of lowa approved certified partners, forms, and approvals have become common place.

Components consisted of the following specific tasks:

Facility utilities- electrical, gas, telephone, domestic water, and wastewater services, contracts, equipment identifications &
disconnections.

Discontinuing LUST Site benzene remediation operations, & equipment removal.

Removal of underground diesel tank (emergency generator).

Aquifer/ water sampling & laboratory analysis, soil borings & laboratory analysis.

Authorization of well monitoring discontinuance.

Authorization to discontinue DNR site testing.

Plugging of all wells.

Hazardous materials inventory study, asbestos containing materials inspection, and asbestos removal.
DNR LUST site reclassification.

Various entities were involved including the Department of Natural Resources, Northwest Environmental Services Inc, Steffen
Engineering Inc., Impact 7G, Eocene, Site Services Inc., City of Sioux City, Woodbury County Human Resources, Woodbury
County Recorders Office, & Woodbury County Building Services. These parties were all instrumental toward the end results of
getting to the actual demolition work itself.




FINANCIAL IMPACT:

2025/ 2026 Capital Improvement
CMBA Architects- $48,000.00

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes No d

RECOMMENDATION:

Motion to approve CMBA Contract dated September 9th, 2025 for the Woodbury County Law Enforcement
Center Demo (407 7th St.).

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to approve CMBA contract in the amount of $48,000.00

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.



Init.

[
I :‘\:ﬂ”&'
[
ﬂﬁ#@i;

AGREEMENT made as of the Ninth day of September in the year Two Thousand

Twenty-Five
(In words, indicate day, month and vear.)

BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner:

(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Woodbury County, Towa
620 Douglas St.
Sioux City, IA 51101

and the Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, P.C.
dba CMBA Architects

302 Jones St.

Suite 200

Sioux City. IA 51101

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

24230 Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center Demo

Create demolition plans for the existing building and return of site to development ready.

The Owner and Architect agree as follows:

‘= AIA Document B101" - 2017

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

AIA Document B101 —2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/04/2025 under Order No 20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts. com.

User Notes:

(1952665676)

1



Init.

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES

4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES
8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
1 COMPENSATION
12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
ARTICLE 1  INITIAL INFORMATION
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1.
(For each item in this section, insert the information or « statement such as "not applicable” or *uninovwn af time of
execution.')
§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project:
(Inserf the Owner’s progiam, identify documentation that establishes the Chwner’s program, or state the manner in

which the program vill be developed,)

Program to include full building demeolition along with selected sife elements, coordination with City owned elements
and prepatation of site for future development.

§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics:

(Identify or describe pertivient information about the Project’s physical characteristics, stich as size; location;
dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; fopographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of
public and private ntilities and services, legal description of the site, etc.)

Existing three-story building located at 407 7 Street in Sioux City, Towa, Building currently stands on a half block
between 7% and 8™ Streets and Douglas and Pierce Strects,

§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1:
{Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.)

To be determined (TBD)
§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestone dates:

A Design phase milestone dates, if any:

AlA Document B101 — 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. *The American institute of Architects,” “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA,™ the AJA Logo, and “AlA Confract Documents” are trademarks of The American institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2028, is not for resale, is licensed for one-fime use only, and may only be used in accordance with
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@atacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676)

2



Init.

Demolition plans to be complete by August 31, 2025.
.2 Construction commenceinent date:

Demolition to begin by October 15, 2025.
3 Substantial Completion date or dates:

Spring 2026

A Other milestone dates:

§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends the following procuremnent and delivery method for the Project:
(Identifyy method such as compeltitive bid or negotiated contract, as well as any requirements for accelerated or
Jast-track design and construction, multiple bid packages, or phased construction.)

Competitive Bid

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project:
(Identify and describe the Owner's Sustainable Objective for the Project, if cry)

Not Applicable (N/A)

§ 1.1.6.1 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Architect shall complete and incorporate AIA
Document E204™.2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and
services related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective. If E204-2017 is incorporated into this agreement, the Owner
and Architect shall incorporate the completed E204-2017 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors
performing services or Work in any way associated with the Sustainable Objective.

§ 1.1.7 The Owner identifies the foltowing representative in accordance with Section 5,3:
{List name, address, end other contact information.)

Kenny Schinitz, Director-Building Services
Woodbury County

401 8% st.

Sioux City, IA 51101

Email: kschmitz@woodburycountviowa.gov

§ 1.1.8 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the Architect’s
submittals to the Owner are as follows:
{List name, address, and other contact information,)

N/A

§ 1.1.9 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and coniractors:
{List name, legal status, address, and other contact information. )

A Geotechnical Engineer:

TBD

AlA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1578, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA.™ the AlA Loge, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 an
09/04/2025 under Order No.20260091042 which expires on01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use enly, and may cnly be used in accordance with
the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {1952665676)



Init.

.2 Civil Engineer;

3 Other, if any:
(List any other %
ants and contractors vetained by the Chwner.)

§ 1.1.10 The Architect identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.3:
(List name, address, and other contfact information.)

Terry Glade, Principal Architect
CMBA Architects

302 Jones St,

Suite 200

Sioux City, IA 51101

Ph: 712-274-2933

Email: glade.t@cmbaarchitects.com

§ 1.1.11 The Architect shall retain the consultants identified in Sections 1.1.11.F and 1.1.11.2:

(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.)

§ 1.1.11.1 Consultants retained under Basic Services:
1 Structural Engineer:

Raker Rhodes Engineering
524 N Main Ave.

Unit 201

Sioux Falls, 8D 57104

.2 Mechanical Engineer:

3 Electrical Engincer;

4 Civil Engineer:

AlA Documment B101 — 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of
Architects,” "AJA," the AlA Logo, and “AJA Coniract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institule of Architects. This decument was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/¢4/2025 under Crder No.20250091042 which expires on (1/16/20286, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

the AlA Contract Documentz® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes;

(1952665676)

4



Init.

Olsson
1707 Dakota Ave.
South Sioux City, NE 68776

§ 1.1.11.2 Consultants retained under Supplemental Services:

N/A

§ 1.1.12 Other Initial Information on which the Agreement is based:
N/A

§ 1.2 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that the Initial
Information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the
Architect’s services, schedule for the Architect’s services, and the Architect’s compensation. The Owner shall adjust
the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work and the Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as
necessary, to accomnodate material changes in the Initial Information. -

§ 1.3 The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transimission and use of Instruments of Service or any other
information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™-2013, Building
Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, and
exchange of digital data.

§ 1.3.1 Any vse of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set
forth in ATA Document E263™-2013, Building Information: Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite
ATA Document G202¥-2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or relying
party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or contributors
to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide professional services as set forth in this Agreement. The Architect represents that it
is propetly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project is located to provide the sarvices required by this Agreement,
or shall canse such services to be performed by appropriately licensed design professionals.

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of
the Project.

§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized fo act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the
Project.

§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any
employment, inferest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional
Judgiment with respect to this Project.

§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement. If any of the
requirements set forth below are in addition to the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall
pay the Architect as set forth in Section 11.9.

§ 2.5.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 for each occurrence and
$2,000,000.00 in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.

AlA Document B101 - 2017, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The Ametican Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of
Architects,” *AlA," the AIA Logo, and "AlA Gontract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architecs. This decument was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/04/2026 under Order No.20250001042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accardance with
the AlA Contract Docurnents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mait docinfo@aiacaoniracts, com.

User Notes: (1952665876)



Init.

§ 2.5.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Architect with policy
limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per accident for bodily injury, death of any person, and property damage arising
out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along with any other statutorily required
automobile coverage.

§ 2.5.3 The Architect may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commetrcial General Liability and Automobile
Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided such primary and
excess ot umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages required under
Sections 2.5.1 and 2.5.2, and in no event shall any excess or unbrella liability insurance provide narrower coverage
than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying limits only through the
actual payiment by the nodetlying insurers.

§ 2.54 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits.
§ 2.5.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits of not less than $500,000.00.

§ 2.5.6 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performaince of professional services
with policy limits of not less than $3,000,000.00 per claim and in the aggregate.

§ 2.5.7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shali cause the primary and
excess or umbrella polices for Conunercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Owner as an
additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions. The additional
insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s insurance policies and shall apply to
both ongoing and completed operations,

§ 2.5.8 The Architect shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with the
requirements in this Section 2.5,

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES

§ 3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those described in this Article 3 and include vsual and customary
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Supplemental or
Additional Services.

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, research applicable design criteria, attend Project
meetings, communicate with members of the Project team, and report progress to the Owner.

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s
consultants, The Architect shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, and
timeliness of, services and information furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Architect shall
provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission, or inconsistency in
such services or information.

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shatl submit for the Owner’s approval a
schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule initially shall inciude anticipated dates for the
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information. The
schedule shall inciude allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for the performance of the
Owner’s consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once
approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by
the Architect or Owner, With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the Project
proceeds until the commencement of construction.

§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner’s divective or substitution, or for the Owner’s acceptance
of non-conforming Work, made or given without the Architect’s written approval.

AlA Document B101 —2017. Copyright @ 1974, 1678, 1987, 1987, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA” the AlA Lago, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This decument was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250081042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
the AlA Confract Documents® Terms of Service. To repert copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676)



Init.

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall contact governmental authorities required to approve the Construction Documents and
entities providing wtility services to the Project. The Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements
imposed by those authorities and entities.

§ 3.16 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.2 Schematic Design Phase Services
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws,
codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services.

§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost of
the Work, Project site, the proposed procurement and delivery method, and other Initial Information, each in terms of
the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any inconsistencies
discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that nray be reasonably needed for the
Project.

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner
alternative approaches fo design and construction of the Project. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the
Onwner regarding the requirements of the Project.

§ 3.24 Based on the Project requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present, for the
Owner’s approval, a preliminary desiga illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components.

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary desigu, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design
Documents for the Owner's approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other
documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital representations. Preliminary selections of

‘major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing,

§ 3.25.1 The Architect shall consider sustainable design alternatives, such as material choices and building
orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that is
consistent with the Owuner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain more
advanced sustainable design services as a Supplemental Service under Section 4.1.1.

§ 3.25.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together
with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent
with the Owner’s program, schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shail submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with
Section 6.3.

§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner’s approval.

§ 3.3 Design Development Phase Services

§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of any
adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare Design
Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Degign Development Documents shall illustrate and describe
the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other documents
including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building systems to fix
and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, stiuctural, mechanical and electrical systems, and
other appropriate elements. The Design Development Documents shall also include outline specifications that identify
major materials and systems and establish, in general, their guality levels.

§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 6.3,

AIA Document B101 - 2017, Copyright @ 1974, 1978, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All sights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” "American fnstitute of
Architects,” "AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:60 on
00/04/2025 under Order No.20250081042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
the AIA Contract Documenis® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-maii docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676)

7



init.

§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any '

adjustinents to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner's approval.

§ 3.4 Construction Documents Phase Services

§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare
Constction Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the
further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings and
Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels and performance criteria of materials and systems and other
requirements for the construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that, in order to perform the
Work, the Confractor will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other
similar submittals, which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4.

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate the design requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over
the Project into the Construction Documents.

§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the
development and preparation of (1) procurement information that describes the time, place, and conditions of bidding,
inclunding bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and Contractor; and {3} the
Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions). The Architect shall also
compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and Specifications, and may
include bidding requirements and sample forins.

§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 6.3,

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments to
the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner’s approval.

§ 3.5 Procurement Phase Services

§ 3.5.1 General

The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s approval
of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining competitive bids in compliance
with the public bidding requirements of the Iowa Code (2) awarding and preparing contracts for construction,

§ 3.5.2 Competitive Bidding
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements in compliance with Towa Code and proposed
Contract Docuiments.

§ 1.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by:
1 facilitating the distribution of Bidding Documents to prospective bidders;
.2 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders;
3 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to the prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and,
4 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing the
bidding results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3.5.2.3 If the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, npon the Owner’s writien authorization, the Architect shall,
as an Additional Serviee, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved
substitutions to all prospective bidders.

(Paragraphs deleted)

§ 3.6 Construction Phase Services

§ 1.6.1 General

§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set forth
below and in AIA Docuinent A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. If the Owner and
Contractor modify ATA Document A201-2017, those modifications shall not affect the Architect’s services under this
Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement.

AIA Document B101 — 2017, Copyright @ 1974, 1878, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017, All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” *American [nstitute of
Architects.” "AlA" the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/04/2025 under Crder No_20250061042 which expires on 01/16/20286, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

the AlA Contract Documenits® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes; {1952665678)

8



Init.

§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consnlt with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The Architect
shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The Architect shall
not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the consiruction means, methods, techniques, sequences or
procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the Architect be responsible
for the Coatractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, The
Architect shall be responsible for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but shall not have control over or charge
of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or amissions of the Contractor or of any other persons or entities performing
portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.2 and except as provided in Section 3.6.6.5, the Architect’s responsibility to provide
Construction Phase Services comunences with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date
the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment,

§ 3.6.2 Evaluations of the Work

§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise required
in Section 4.2.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and
fo determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully
completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not be required to make
exhaustive or continuons on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On the basis of the site visits,
the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of the portion of the Work
completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract Documents, (2) known
deviations froin the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (3) defects and deficiencies
observed in the Work.

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the anthority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or testing
of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is fabricated,
installed or completed. However, neither this anthority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to
exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect fo the Confractor,
Subcontractors, suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 1.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
from, the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect shal endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not
show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The
Architect’s decisions on matters refating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the
Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that term
is defined in AIA Document A201-2017, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the Qwner and
Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.3 Certificates for Payment to Contractor

§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such
amounts. The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Oswnet, based on the
Architect’s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, infornation and belief, the Wark has
progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the
Confractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified, The foregoing representations are subject to (1) an evaluation
of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) results of subsequent
tests and inspections, (3} correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4)
specific qualifications expressed by the Architect.

AlA Decument B101 — 2017. Copyright @ 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Archilects,” “American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250061042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violaticns, e-mail docinfo@aiaconfracts.com,

User Notes: (1952665676)

9



§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment,
or {4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Coniract
Sum.

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment,

§ 3.6.4 Submittals

§ 3.6.4.1 The Archifect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withheld
approval of the schedule, The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the
approved submittal schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while
allowing sufficient time, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to permit adequate review.

§ 3.6.4.2 The Architect shall review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for
the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and
installation or performance of equipment or systems, which are the Contracior’s responsibility. The Architect's review
shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or
procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is
a component.

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment, the Architect shall specify the
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy, The Architect shall review and take
appropriate action on Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the
Contractor’s design professional, provided the submittals bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted
to the Architect. The Architect’s review shall be for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents, The Archisect shall be entitled to rely upon, and
shall not be responsible for, the adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or
provided by such design professionals.

§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to Section 4,2, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the Contract
Documents, The Architect shall set forth, in the Contract Documents, the requirements for requests for information,
Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the specific Drawings
or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The Architect’s response to such
requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with reasonable promptness, If
appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in response to the
requests for information.

§ 1.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Coniractor in
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Pocuments.

§ 3.6.5 Changes in the Work

§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to
Section 4.2, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the Owner’s approval
and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative fo changes in the Work,

§ 3.6.6 Project Completion
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shali:

Init. AlA Docureent B10t — 2017, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Allrights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” *American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA” the AIA Logo, and *AlA Confract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institule of Architects. This docoment was produced at 15:52:50 on 10
09/04/2025 under Order No. 20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2028, is not for resale, is licenzed for one-time use only, and may cnly be used in accordance with

! the AlA Conbract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiaconiracts.com.,
User Notes: (1952665676)



A conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final
completion;

.2 issue Certificates of Substantial Completion;

.3 forward to the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents
required by the Contract Documents and received from the Contractor; and,

4 issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection indicating that, to the best of the
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work complies with the requirements of the
Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accunracy and completeness of the list submitted by the
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected.

§ 3.6.6.3 When Substantial Completion has been achieved, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the balance of
the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the Contract Swn, if
any, for final completion or correction of the Work.

§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1)
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; {2)
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens, or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,

§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one vear from the date of Substantial Completion,
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility
operations and performance.

ARTICLE 4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

§ 4.1 Supplemental Services

§ 4.1.1 The services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The Architect
shall provide the listed Supplemental Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the Architect’s
responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11,2, Unless otherwise
specifically addressed in this Agreement, if neither the Owner nor the Architect is designated, the parties agree that the
listed Supplemental Service is not being provided for the Project.

(Designate the Architect’s Supplemental Services and the Owner’s Supplemental Services required for the Project by
indicaiing whether the Architect or Owner shall be responsible for providing the identified Supplemental Service.
Insert a description of the Supplemental Services in Section 4.1.2 below or altach the description of services as an
exhibil to this Agreement.)

Supplemental Services ' ~ Responsibility
{Architect, Ovmer, or not provided)

§ 41.11  Programming Not Provided
§ 41.1.2  Muliiple preliminary designs Not Provided
§ 41.1.3 Measured drawings Not Provided
§ 41.1.4 Existing facilities surveys Not Provided
§ 4115 Site evaluation and planning Not Provided
§ 4.1.1.6 Building Information Model management Not Provided
responsibilities .
§ 41.1.7 Development of Building Information Models for Net Provided

post construction use

§ 4118 Civil engineering Architect as part of Basic Services

§ 4119 Landscape design Not Provided
§ 4.1.1.10 Architectural interior design Not Provided

: AlA Document B101 — 2017 Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. *The American Institute of Architects,” *American Institute of
Init. Architects,” *AJA” the AIA Logo, and *AlA Contract Documnents™ are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced af 15:52:50 on 11
09/04/2025 under Crder No.20250091042 which expires on01/16/2028, is not for resale, i ficensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
/ the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viokations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1952665676)



Supplemental Services Responsibility
(Architect, Ovwner, or not provided)
l § 4.1.4.11 Value analysis Not Provided
) § 41.1.12 Detailed cost es'_(imating beyond that Not Provided
required in Section 6,3
§ 4.1.1.13 On-site project representation _ Not Provided
l § 4.1.1.14 Conformed documents for construction Not Provided
| ' § 41115 As-designed record drawings Architect as part of Basic Services
| § 41.1.16 As-constructed record drawings ot Provided
I § 44417 Post-occupancy evaluation ot Provided
| § 4.1.1.18 Pacility support services Not Provided
| § 4.1.4.19 Tenant-related services Not Provided
' § 4.1.1.20 Architect’s coordination of the Owner’s Not Provided
consultants
§ 4.1.1.21 Telecommunications/data design Not Provided
| § 41.1.22 Security evaluation and planning Not Provided
| § 41.1.23 Commissioning Not Provided
I § 4.1.1.24 Sustainable Project Services pursuant to Section Not Provided
4,1.3
§ 4.1.1.25 Fast-track design services Not Provided
I § 4.41.26 Multiple bid packages Not Provided
| § 4.1.1.27 Historic preservation Not Provided
| § 4.1.1.28 Furniture, furnishings, and equipment design Not Provided
I § 4.1.1.29 Other services provided by specialty Consultants Not Provided
i § 4.1.1.30 Other Supplemental Services Not Provided

§ 4.1.2 Description of Supplemental Services

§ 4.1.2.1 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Architect’s responsibility is
provided below.

(Describe in detail the Architect's Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit,
identify the exhibit. The AIA publishes a mumber of Standard Form of Architect’s Services dociments that can be
incinded as an exhibif fo describe the Archifect’s Supplemental Services.)

§ 4.1.1.8 Architect fo include Civil Engineering as it pertains to the demolition of the existing building and the return
of the site to a stable condition. It does not include site swrvey services.

§ 4.1.1.15 Architect fo include As-designed record drawings in the form of the construction documents including all
addendum itemns,

§ 4.1.2.2 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Owner’s responsibility is
provided below,

{Describe in detail the Cwner’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, identify
the exhibit.)

§ 4.1.3 1f the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Architect shall provide, as a Supplemental
Service, the Sustainability Services required in ATA Drocument E204™. 2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached
to this Agreement, The Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2.

AlA Document B101 — 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Ali rights reserved, "The American Institute of Architects,” *American Institute of

Init. Archifects," *AlA” the AlA Lego, and *AlA Confract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 12
09/04/2026 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may cnly be used in accordance with
{ the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service, To report copyright violafions, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665678}



§ 4.2 Architect’s Additional Services

The Architect may provide Additional Services after execution of this Agreement without invalidating the Agreement,
Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with this
Section 4.2 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in the
Architect’s schedule,

§ 4.2.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumnstances giving rise to the need, The Architect shall not
proceed to provide the following Additional Services until the Architect receives the Qwner’s written authorization:
A Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given by
the Owner, or a material change in the Project including size, quality, complexity, the Owner’s
schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method;
2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, or regulations, including changing or
editing previonsly prepared Instruments of Setvice;
3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by official interpretations
of applicable codes, laws or regulations that are either (a) contrary to specific interpretations by the
applicable authorities having jurisdiction made prior to the issuance of the building permit, or (b)
contrary to requireinents of the Instruments of Service when those Instruments of Service were
prepared in accordance with the applicable standard of care;
4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure of
performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors;
.5 Preparing digital imodels or other design documentation for transmission to the Owner’s consultants
and contractors, or to other Owner-authorized recipients;
8 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner;
.T  Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing;
8  Preparation for, and attendance at, a dispute resclution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where
the Architect is party thereto;
.9  Bvalvation of the qualifications of entities providing bids or proposals;
A0 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction;
or,
A1 Agssistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect.

§ 4.2.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services, notify
the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumnstances giving rise to the need. If, upon
receipt of the Architect’s notice, the Owner determines that all or parts of the services are not required, the Owner shall
give prompt written notice to the Architect of the Owner’s determination. The Owner shall compensate the Architect
for the services provided prior to the Architect’s receipt of the Owner’s notice.

A Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule approved by the
Architect;

.2 Responding to the Contractor’s requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the
Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study and
comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information,
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation;

4 Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor’s
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service;

4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker; or,

5 Ewvaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom.

§ 4.2.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner:
A Two (2) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar subiittals of the
Contractor
.2 Thirty Six (36) visits to the site by the Architect during construction
3 One (1) inspection for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

AlA Document B101 — 2017, Copyiight © 1974, 1678, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institiie of Architects,” *American Institute of

Init. Architects,” “AIA " the AlA Logo, and *AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 13
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
! fhe AIA Confract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Motes: (1952665676)



4 One (1) inspaction for any portion of the Work to determine final completion.

§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.6.6.5 and those services that do not exceed the limits set forth in
Secticn 4.2.3, Construction Phase Services provided more than 60 days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of
the Work or (2) the initial date of Substantial Completion identified in the agreement between the Owner and
Contractor, whichever is earlier, shall be compensated as Additional Services to the extent the Architect incurs
additional cost in providing those Construction Phase Services.

§ 4.2.5 If the services coverad by this Agreement have not been completed within twenty ( 20 ) months of the date of
this Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services beyond that time shall be
compensated as Additional Services.

ARTICLE & OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program, which shall set forth the
Owner’s objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships; flexibility;
expandability; special equipment; systems; and site requirements.

§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget for the Cost of the Work
as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs.
The Owner shall update the Owner’s budget for the Project as necessary throughout the duration of the Project until
final completion. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Woik, the
Owner shall notity the Architect, The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the
Project’s scope and quality.

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project. The
Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s subinittals in a timely manner in order to avoid unreasonable
delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services.

§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the
site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and lega! information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, ¢asements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and
contours of the site; locations, dimensions, and other necessary data with respect ta existing buildings, other
improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private,
above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project
benchmark.

§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical enginsers, which may include test borings, test pits,
determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evalvation, ground
corrosion tests and registivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written
reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 5.6 The Owner shall provide the Supplemental Services designated as the Owner’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1,

§ 5.7 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as required
in AIA Document E204™-2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached to this Agreement.

§ 5.8 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect.
Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the coniracts between the
Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated as
the responsibility of the Architect in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional
Service, when the Architect requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of
the Project. The Owner shall require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including professional
liability insurance, as appropriate to the services or work provided.

AlA Decument B101 — 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Insfitute of Architects,” “American Insfitute of

Init. Architects,” "AIA” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects, This document was produced at 15:52:60 on 14
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2028, is not for resale, is licenzed for ane-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notas: (19526856786)



§ 5.9 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and repotts required by law or the Contract Documents, such as
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

§ 5.10 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.

§ 5.11 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or
defect in the Project, including errots, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service.

§ 5.12 The Owner shall include the Architect in all communications with the Contractor that relate to or affect the
Architect’s services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of
any direct communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications
by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect.

§ 5.13 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect’s duties and
responsibilities sef forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect’s services set forth in this Agreement. The
Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor, inchuding the
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 5.14 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall
obligate the Contracior to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress.

§ 5.15 Within 15 days after receipt of a written request from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested
information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce lien rights.

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK

§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors’ general conditions costs,
overhiead and profit. The Cost of the Work also inclndes the reasonable value of labor, materials, and equipment,
donated to, or otherwise fuxnished by, the Owner. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the
Architect; the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, or contingencies for changes in the Work; or other costs that
are the responsibility of the Owner.

§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and shall be adjusted throughout
the Project as required under Sections 3.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work,
and the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work, prepared by the
Architect, represent the Architect’s judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither the
Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; the Contractor’s methods of
determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot
and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost of
the Work, or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work, or evaluation, prepared or agreed to by the Architect.

§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for design,
bidding, and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction
are fo be included in the Contract Documnents; to recommentd reasonable adjustments in the program and scope of the
Project; and to inchide design alternates as may be necessary to adjust the estimated Cost of the Work to meet the
Owner's budget, The Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar
conceptual estimating techniques. If the Owner requires a detailed estimate of the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall
provide such an estimate, if identified as the Architect’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1, as a Supplemental Service,

§ 6.41f, through no fault of the Architect, the Procurement Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the
Architect subsmits the Construction Documents to the Owner, the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work shall be
adjusted to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market.

§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Worl exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality, or
budget for the Cost of the Woik, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments.

AlA Document BI04 — 2017, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1887, 1967, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of

Init. Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Decuments” are trademarks of The American institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 15
08/04/2025 under Crder No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is nof for reszle, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail decinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676}



§ 6.6 If the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclugion of the Construction Documents Phase Services
is exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Qwner shall

A give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;

.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time;

.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5;

4  in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce

the Cost of the Work; or,
b5 implement any other imutually acceptable alternative.

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect shall modify the Construction Documents as
necessary to comply with the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction
Documents Phase Services, or the brdget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. If the Owner requires the Architect to
modify the Construction Docnments because the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal exceeds the Owner's
budget for the Cost of the Work by more than 10%, the Architect’s services for modifying the Construction
Diocuments shall be without additional compensation, but the Owner shall otherwise compensate the Architect for the
modifications as an Additional Service pursuant to Section 11.3. In any evem, the Architect’s modification of the
Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect’s responsibility under this Article 6.

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

§ 7.1 Drawings, spécifications and other documents prepared by the Architect shall become property of the Owner,
and are for the Owner’s use solely with respect to constructing the Project, When transimitting copyright-protected
information for use on the Project, the transmitting party represents that it is either the copyright owner of the
information, or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit the information for its use on the Project.

§ 7.2 In the event the Owner uses the Instroments of Service without retaining the author of the Instruments of Service,
the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising from such
uses, The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect and its
consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted
by any third person or eutity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of the Instruments of
Service under this Section 7.2. The terms of this Section 7.2 shall not apply if the Owner rightfully terminates this
Agreement for canse under Section 9.4,

§ 7.3 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s
consultants.

{Paragraph deleted) _
§ 7.4 Except as otherwise stated in Section 7.3, the provisions of this Article 7 shall survive the termination of this

Agreement,

(Paragraph deleted)

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 8.1 General

§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or
related to this Agreement, whether in contract, fort, or otherwise, in accordance with the requirenents of the binding
dispute resolution method selected in this Agreeanent and within the period specified by applicable law, but inany case
not maore than 10 years after the date of Substantial Compietion of the Work, The Owner and Architect waive all
claims and canses of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1.

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages, except such rights
as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in ATA Document A201-2017, General Conditions of
the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the contractors, consultants,
agents, and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other parties enumerated herein.

AlA Document B101 — 2017, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All righis reserved. "The American Institute of Architacts,” "American Institute of

Init. Architects," “AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 16
09/04/2025 under Crder No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is nof for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-maii docinfogiaiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {1952685678)



§ 8.1.3 The Archifect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, or other matters in question,
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential
damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7.

§ 8.2 Mediation

§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispufe or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement may be subject to
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien
arising out of the Architect's services, the Architect inay proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the
lien notice or filing deadlines pricand r to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution.

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect may endeavor to resolve claims, dispufes and other matters in question between them
by mediation, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, may be administered by the American Arbitration
Association in accordance with its Constriction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of this
Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and filed
with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a
complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a pericd of 60 days
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration
proceeding is stayed pursvant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s)
and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shalf be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof,

§ 6.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding
dispute resolution shall be the following:
{Check the appropriate box.,)

[ 1] Arbitration pursuant fo Section 8.3 of this Agreement

| [ X ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

I 1] Other: (Specifi)

If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of competent
jurisdiction.

§ 8.3 Arbitration

§ B.3.11If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any
claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but nof resolved by,
mediation shall be subject to arbifration, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by
the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Acbitration Rules in effect on the
date of this Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made In writing, delivered to the other party to this
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration.

§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation,
but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim,
dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations
purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall
congtitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other matter in question.

AIA Document B101 - 2017, Copyright @ 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. *The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of

Init. Architects, “AIA," the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The Amesican Insfifute of Architects. This document was produced al 15:52:50cn 7
00/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2028, is not for resale, is icensed for one-tirne use orly, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AlA Contract Documenis® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts. com.

User Notes: (1952665676}



§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly
consented to by parties to this Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in any
court having jurisdiction thereof,

§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s} shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with
applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.3.4 Consolidation or Joinder

§ 8.3.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration
permits consolidation; (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact;
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 8.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided
that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional
person or entity shall not constilute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not
described in the written consent,

§ 8.3.4.3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this
Section 8.3, whether by joinder or conselidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and
Architect under this Agreement,

§ 8.4 The provisions of this Article 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension of
performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give
seveti days® written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage cansed the Owner because of such suspension of
services. Before restming services, the Owner shall pay the Architect all sums due prior to suspension and any
expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the
remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the
interruption and reswmption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time
schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice.

§ 9.4 Either patty may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the
terminatioty.

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect for the
Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 9.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreemient for its convenience pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates
this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect for services performed prior to
termination, Reimbursable Expenses incurred, and costs attributable to termination, including the costs attributable to
the Architect’s termination of consultant agreements,

AlA Document B101 -~ 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Instiiute of Architects,* "American Institute of

init. Architects," "AlA” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Decuments® are trademarks of The American Instifute of Architects, This document was produced at 16:52:50 on 18
09/04/20256 under Crder No.2025009 1042 which expires on 01/16/2028, is rot for resale, is licensed for one-time use anly, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AlA Confract Decuments® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665675)



§ 9.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 9.6, if the Owner terminafes this Agreement for its convenience
purstant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this Agreement pursnant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay to the
Architect the following fees:

(Set forth below the amount of any termination or licensing fee, or the method for determining any termination or
licensing fee.)

A Tenmination Fee:
| Zero Dollars (30.00)

.2 Licensing Fee if the Owner intends to continue using the Architect’s Instruments of Service:
| Zero Dollars ($0.00)

§ 9.8 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate one year from the date of
Substantial Completion.

§ 9.9 The Owner’s rights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this Agreement
are set forth in Article 7 and Section 9.7.

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that
jurisdiction’s choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the
Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3,

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A201-2017, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and legal
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owser nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the written
cousent of the other, except that the Owner imay assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for the Project
if the lender agress to assume the Owner's rights and obligations uader this Agreement, including any payments due to
the Architect by the Owner prior to the assignment.

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the Architect
for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or consents
that would require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor
of, a third party against either the Owner or Architect.

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery,
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any
form at the Project site.

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the rigit to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the Project
among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable access to the
completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include the Owner’s
confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific
information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide professional credit for
the Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project. This Section 10.7 shall survive the termination of
this Agreement untless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 9.4,

AIA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright & 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017, All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," *American Instifute of

Init. Architecis” "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:62:50 on 19
08/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
1 the AtA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676)



§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated as "confidential" or "business
proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it fo any other
person except as set forth in Section 10.8.1. This Section 10.8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

§ 10.8.1 The receiving party may disclose "confidential" or "business proprietary" information after 7 days’ notice to
the other party, when required by law, arbitrator’s order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of
compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably
necessary for the receiving party to defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also disclose such
information to its employees, consultants, or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exchisively
for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the disclosure
and use of such information as set forth in this Section 10.8.

§ 109 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and
enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the
parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION
§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Asticle 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as
follows;

A Stipulated Suin
(Insert amount)

Forty-Eight Thosuand Dollars ($48,000.00)

.2 Percentage Basis
{Insert percentage value)

3 Other
(Describe the method of compensation)

§ 11.2 For the Architect’s Supplemental Services designated in Section 4.1.1 and for any Sustainability Services
raquired pursuant to Section 4.1.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:

{Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services fo which particular methods of
compensation apphy.)

| As negotiated per scope of work.

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Tusept amount of, or basis for, compensation,)

| As negotiated per scope of work.

§ 11.4 Compensation for Supplemental and Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in
Section 11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus zero percent (0%), or as follows:

{Insert amount of, or basis for computing, Architect's consultants’ compensation for Supplemental or Additional
Services.)

AlA Document 8101 — 2017. Gopyright € 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Al rights reserved. “The American Insfitute of Architects,” “American Institute of

Init. Architects.” "AIA," the AlA Loge, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architecis. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 20
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is icensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
1 the AJA Contract Dacuments® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676)



§ 11.5 When compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or a percentage basis, the proportion of
compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows:

Schematic Design Phase Zero  percent ( 0 %)
Design Development Phase Zero  percent ( 0 %)
Construction Documeits Fifty percent ( 50 %)
Phase

Procurement Phase Ten  percent ( 10 %)
Construction Phase Forty  percent ( 40 %)
Total Basic Compensation one hundred  percent ( 100 %)

§ 11.6 When compensation identified in Section 11.1 is on a percentage basis, progress payments for each phase of
Basic Services shall be calculated by multiplying the percentages identified in this Arsticle by the Owner’s most recent
budget for the Cost of the Work, Compensation paid in previous progress payiments shall not be adjusted based on
subsequent updates to the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 11.6.1 When compensation is on a percentage basis and any portions of the Project are deleted or otherwise not
constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent services are performed on
those portions, The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services
performed whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced.

§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants are set forth below. The
rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants® normal review practices.
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below,)

| CMBA Hourly Rates Attached as Exhibit A.

Employee or Category Rate ($0.00)

§ 11.8 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses

§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic, Supplemental, and Additional Services

and include expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as

follows:

Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project web sites,

and extranets;

Permitting and other fees required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents;

Postage, handling, and delivery; _

Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;

Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials

requested by the Owner or required for the Project;

If required by the Owner, and with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Architect’s consultants’

expenses of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Project, or the expense of

additional insurance coverage or limits in excess of that normally maintained by the Architect’s

consultants;

9  All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

A0 Site office expenses;

A1 Registration fees and any other fees charged by the Certifying Authority or by other entities as
necessary to achieve the Sustainable Objective; and,

A2 Other similar Project-related expenditures,

Nk R

oo

§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the
Architect’s consultants pius zero percent (0%) of the expenses incurred.

AlA Document B101 — 2017, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1957, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Instilute of Architects,” "American [nstitute of

Init. Architects,” "AIA,” the AlA Loge, and “AlA Gontract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 21
02/04/2025 under Crder No.20250081042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
1 the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1952665676)



§ 11.9 Architect’s Insurance. If the types and limits of coverage required in Section 2.5 are in addition to the types and
limnits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Architect for the additional costs incurred by the
Architect for the additional coverages as set forth below:

{Insert the additional coverages the Architect is required to obtain in order fo satisfy the requirements set forth in
Section 2.5, and for which the Ovner shall reimburse the Architect,)

§ 11.10 Payments to the Architect

§ 11.10.1 Initiat Payments

§ 11.10.1.1 An initial payment of Zero (3 0.00 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the minimum
payment under this Agreement. If shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.

§ 11.10.1.2 If a Sustainability Certification is part of the Sustainable Objective, an initial payment to the Architect of
(8 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreeinent for registration fees and other fees payable to the Certifying
Authority and necessary to achieve the Sustainability Certification. The Architect’s payments to the Certifying
Authority shall be credited to the Owner’s account at the time the expense is incurred.

§ 11.10.2 Progress Payments

§ 11.10.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services
performed. Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid thirty (30)
days after the invoice date shall bear inferest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate
prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.

{Insert rate of monthiy or annual interest agreed upon.)

| 18% per anmum

§ 11.10.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in the
Work, unless the Architect and the Owner agree (o a good faith claim that the need for the change ovder is due to the
arrors or omissions of the Architect. Mothing in this section shall abrogate the Owner’s right to withhold due to a
material breach of this agreement by Architect,

§ 11.10.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Supplemental and Additional Services, and
services performed on the basis of houly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times,

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terins and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable o this Agreement.)

! N/A

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be
amended only by written instrument signed by both the Qwner and Architect.

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below:
A AIA Document B101™.2017, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect

(Paragraphs deleted)
.3 Exhibits:
(Check the appropriate box for any exhibits incorporated into this Agreement,)

[ ] ATA Document E204™-2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this agreement.)

AlA Document B101 — 2017, Cepyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of

init. Architects,” "AJA" the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” ara trademarks of The American Instifute of Architects. This document was produced at 15:52:50 on 22
08/04/2025 under Order No.20250091042 which expires on01/16/2028, is not for resale, is icensad for cne-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
I the AIA Confract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viotations, e-mail decinfo@siacontracts. com,

User Notes: {1952665676)



[X]  Other Exhibits incorporated into this Agreement:

(Clearly identify any other exhibits incorporated into this Agreement, including any exhibits
and scopes of services identified as exhibits in Section 4.1.2.)

(Paragraphs delated)
Architect’s Hourly Rates attached as Exhibit A.

This Agreament entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) ARCHITECT (Sigharure)

Daniel Bittinger II, Chairperson Terry Glade, Principal Architect
{Printed name and ritle) (Printed name, title, emd license number, {f required)

AlA Document B101 — 2017, Copyright © 1974, 1678, 1087, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects," *American Institute of
Init. Architects,” "AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Gontract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This documnent was produced &t 15:52:50 on 23
09/04/2025 under Order No.20250001042 which expires on 01/16/2028, is nof for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

{1952665676)



CIN
E

2025 STANDARD BILLING RATES

Rates are reviewed and adjusted periodically including, but not limited to, calendar year reviews.

PRINCIPAL .ttt e ettt e e et e e e sttt e e e e abbeeeeseananeeesaane $240
ASSOCIATE PRINCIPAL ...eeiiiiie e S200
SENIOR ARCHITECT ettt ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e e e abrnneeeeeeens $190
ARCHITECT T e e e e e S170
ARCHITECT Il ettt ettt e ettt e e e e et eee bbb e e e e e e eeannneaanss $160
ARCHITE CT | e e e e e e e e e S120
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGNER 1l.ciiiiieiiieeeee ettt ettt ettt e e e ee e e S110
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGNER | . S90
PROJECT MANAGER T oottt ettt e e ettt e e e e e eeennns $150
PROJECT MANAGER Il .cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e S130
PROUJECT MANAGER L.ttt ettt e e ettt eeeeeeeenns S110
REGISTERED INTERIOR DESIGNER I ..cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeceeeeeeeeee S130
REGISTERED INTERIOR DESIGNER 1 ... iiiiiieiie ettt $120
REGISTERED INTERIOR DESIGNER I..ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecce S15
INTERIOR DESIGNER ...ttt ettt e e ettt e e e e e eeeenns $120
INTERIOR DESIGNER T coeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e S110
INTERIOR DESIGNER | ..ottt e e et et e e e e e eeeenns S90
TECHNICTAN Tttt e et e et e e e s tae e e s eaneeeeeaan S120
TECHNICTAN T ..ttt e e e e ettt et e e e e e sttt e e e e e s eaanbbaeeeeeeeeans S110
TECHNICTAN T ettt e e e e e e sttt e e et e e e anneeeeeanneeeeanne S90
INTERN Lttt ettt e e e ettt e e e e e s et et e e e e e e s aaabbbeeeeeeeeeenanbrenes S65
MARKETING SPECIALIST ..ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt S160
GRAPHIC DESIGNER.....ceetttetee ettt ettt ettt e e e e ettt et e e e e e e saibtbeeeeeeeesennans S100

CLERICAL ettt nnne S90



